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First United Corporation, headquartered in
Oakland, Maryland, (Nasdaq: FUNC) is a financial holding
company and the parent company of First United Bank & Trust.
My Bank/First United provides a wide range of financial
products, including commercial, trust, insurance and investment
services. These services are customized to support and enhance
the lives of the people and businesses in Maryland’s Garrett,
Allegany, Washington and Frederick counties, as well as West
Virginia’s Mineral, Hardy, Berkeley and Monongalia counties
through 24 community offices and a nationally recognized
customer service center. Since its founding in 1900, First United
has remained independent and grown steadily through sound

financial management @Bomoww and by investing time, energy

and resources in the communities it serves.

Our Vision

Uncommon Commitment
to Service and Solutions

Our Mission
To Enrich the Lives of Our
Customers, Our Employees and Our Shareholders
Through Uncommon Service and
Effective Financial Solutions

Our Critical Success
Factors

Kaizen (Continuous Improvement)
Employee Enablement
Effective Communication
Retail Orientation
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Message to the Shareholders

of First United Corporation:

Dear Fellow Shareholder:
The increased cost of compliance and the repositioning of

the Company's balance sheet contributed to a slide in earnings
for 2004. The replacement of our Trust Preferred Security and
the early redemption of Federal Home Loan Borrowing had a
combined impact of $.30 per share. While costly, these two
moves position the Company for future growth, while at the
same time substantially reducing our interest costs. The onerous
requirements of compliance, with an increasing regulatory bur-
den cost approximately $.08 per share last year.

These elements, combined with ongoing pressure on our

net interest margin resulted in earnings per share of $1.25. Our

Return on Equity finished at 8.91%. Further details on this can
be found in the 10-K which is included with your Annual
Report.

Loan growth continued to be strong in 2004. It was well
balanced with $66 million in growth in the Commercial Loan
Portfolio and $54 million in growth in the Mortgage Portfolio.
We continued to be challenged in growing deposits last year, as
competition for consumer and business funds was at a fevered
pitch.

As we move forward, we are excited about our expansion

plans into our dynamic growth areas. By the time you receive

this report, our first full service office in Morgantown, West
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First United Corporation and Subsidiaries

Nine Year Summary of
Selected Financial Data

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 9-Year
Compound
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 Growth Rate
Resulits of Operations: m
Tax-equivalent interest income $ 61,380 $ 58,558 $ 58,430 $ 63,978 $ 64,307 $ 55,929 $ 48,140 $ 44,019 $ 39,814 5% .
Interest expense 24,016 23,601 25,702 33,378 35,039 27,146 21,915 18,978 16,376 4% A
Tax-equivalent net interest income 37,364 34,957 32,728 30,600 29,268 28,783 26,225 25,041 23,438 5% !
Tax-equivalent adjustment 698 855 841 749 791 823 673 671 1,244 -6%
Provision for credit losses 2,534 833 1,506 2,926 2,198 2,066 1,176 935 749 14%
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 34,132 33,269 30,381 26,925 26,279 25,894 24,376 23,435 22,148 5%
Non-interest income 12,971 11,867 9,007 9,314 7,789 6,936 6,091 5,967 4,869 11%
Operating non-interest income 12,268 10,858 9,373 8,736 7,912 6,821 5,853 5,876 4,845 11%
Non-operating non-interest income: )
Non-recurring gains on sales of assets - - - - - - - - -
Securities gains (losses) 703 1,009 (366) 578 (123) 115 238 91 24 45%
Non-interest expenses 35,969 29,821 26,038 23,381 21,995 20,739 19,058 19,530 17,394 8%
Operating non-interest expenses 35,410 29,587 26,038 23,346 21,956 20,722 19,058 18,976 17,121 8%
Non-operating non-interest expenses:
Restructuring costs - - - - - - - 554 273 -100%
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 559 234 - 35 39 17 - - -
Income before income taxes 11,134 15,315 13,350 12,858 12,073 12,001 11,409 9,942 9,623 2%
Income tax expense 3,507 4,566 3,695 3,689 3,762 4,130 3,982 3,297 3,144 1%
Net income 7,627 10,749 9,655 9,169 8,311 7,961 7,427 6,645 6,479 2%
Dividends declared 4,423 4,291 4,166 4,047 3,908 3,79 3,781 3,609 4,243 0.5%
Per Share Data:
Net income - basic $ 125 $ 177 $ 159 $ 151 $ 137 $ 130 $ 120 $ 105 $ 1.00 2%
Net income - diluted 1.25 1.77 1.59 1.51 1.37 1.30 1.20 1.05 1.00 2%
Dividends paid 0.72 0.70 0.68 0.66 0.64 0.62 0.60 0.56 0.51 4%
Book value (at year end) 14.17 13.83 13.04 11.69 10.77 9.55 9.50 9.05 8.82 5%
Tangible book value (at year end) 11.69 11.29 12.91 11.56 10.64 9.41 9.50 9.05 8.82 3%

The Corporation’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. This internal control system was designed to provide reasonable
assurance to management and the Board of Directors as to the reliability of the Corporation’s finan-
cial reporting and the preparation and presentation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as to safeguard
asscts from unauthorized usc or disposition.

An internal control system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to finan-

cial statement preparation and presentation and may not prevent or detect mis-statements in the finan-

al staternents or the unauthorized use or disposition of the Corporation’s assets. Also, projections of

Management’s Report of Internal Control Over Financial _am_uo—.::m

any evaluation of effectiveness of internal controls to figure periods are subject to the risk that con-

appearing elsewhcre in this annual report, and has issued an attestation report on management’s

trols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comp with
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectivencss of the Corporation’s internal control over financial report-
ing as of Dccember 31, 2004, based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.
Based on this assessment and on the forcgoing criteria, management has concluded that, as of
December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting is effective.

Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation for the three years ended December 31, 2004,

assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2004, as stated in their report, which is included herein.

Al Aot~ 0L

William B. Grant Robert W. Kurtz
Chairman of the Board and,

Chief Executive Officer

President and,
Chief Financial Officer
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First United Bank & Trust
Office and Automated Teller Machine (ATM) Locations

Hagerstown

@ Myersville

Frederick
[ ]

QOifice
ATM
Office & ATM

Web Site
" | www.mybankfirstunited.com
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First United Corporation and Subsidiaries
Directors and Management

First United Corporation
Executive Management

William B. Grant
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Robert W. Kurtz
President, Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary/Treasurer

Jeannette R. Fitzwater
Senior Vice President and
Director of Human Resources

Philip D. Frantz
Senior Vice President and
Director of Operations and Support

Eugene D. Helbig, Jr.
Senior Vice President and
Senior Trust Officer

Steven M. Lantz
Senior Vice President and
Senior Lending Officer

Robin E. Murray
Senior Vice President and
Director of Marketing

Frederick A. Thayer, IV
Senior Vice President
Director of Retail Banking and CRA Officer

First United Corporation Subsidiaries

First United Insurance Group
Val J. Teagarden
President and Chief Executive Officer

OakFirst Loan Center
Lawrence J. King
President and Chief Operations
Officer

First United Corporation
Directors

David J. Beachy
Fred B. Beachy Lumber Co., Inc.
Building Supplies—retired

Rex W. Burton
Owner and President, Burtons, Inc.
Men’s Wear
Retail and Wholesale
Used Office Furniture and Store Fixtures

Faye E. Cannon
Consultant and Director of Dan Ryan Builders,
Inc., Former Chief Executive Officer and
President of F&M Bancorp, Frederick,
Maryland-retired

Paul Cox, Jr.

Owner, Professional Tax Service

William B. Grant
Chairman of the Board/CEO
First United Corporation and
First United Bank &Trust

Raymond F. Hinkle

Tax Consultant

Robert W. Kurtz

President/CFO/Secretary/Treasurer,
First United Corporation and
First United Bank & Trust

John W. McCullough
Certified Public Accountant. Retired in 1999
as Partner of Ernst & Young, LLC

Elaine L. McDonald
Realtor, Long & Foster Realtors

Donald E. Moran

Secretary/Treasurer, Moran Coal Corporation

Karen F. Myers
President, Mountaineer Log &
Siding Co., Inc. President, Recreational
Industries, Inc.; Member DC
Development LLC, Real Estate Broker,
Deep Creek Mountain Resort

Gary R. Ruddell
President, Hobby House Press, Inc., dba
Total Biz Fulfillment, provides business
services. Member, Gary R. Ruddell LLC,
commercial real estate. Member, MSG
Glendale Properties LLC, residential
real estate

I. Robert Rudy

President, Rudy’s Inc.
Retail Apparel and Sporting Goods
Member, DC Development LL.C

Richard G. Stanton
Retired. Served as the Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of
First United Corporation and First
United Bank & Trust until 1996

Robert G. Stuck

Vice President, Qakview
Motors, Inc.—retired

Honorary Directors
Maynard G. Grossnickle

Farmer, Retired

Frederick A. Thayer
Judge, Retired

Advisory Council

Corinne M. Bradac
Certified Public Accountant, CFP

M. Kathryn Burkey
Certified Public Accountant

Roger N. Fairbourn
Broker/Owner Roger Fairbourn Real Estate

Susan P. Kelley
Owner/Broker Coldwell Banker
Kelley & Associates

Lawrence F. Lockard
R. C. Marker Company, Retired

Hoye Andrew Walls, 111
President, Morgantown Printing & Binding

Mac Warner
Developer, The Square at Falling Run

Renick C. Williams
Developer, Retired

L. Hunter Wilson
President, Hunter Company of West Virginia
Real Estate Development
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UNITED STATES

r N SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549 §

FORM 10-K @x M

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004

OR .
(W TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
Commission file number 0-14237 P@@CESSED
FIRST UNITED CORPORATION R2 9 2005
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) MA
THOMSON
Maryland 52-1380770 FINANCIAL
(State or other jurisdiction (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
19 South Second Street, Oakland, Maryland 21550-0009
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (800) 470-4356
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock, par value $.01 per share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. YesXINo [J

Indicate by check mark if disclosures of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405
of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive
proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I1I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form
10-K.[1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2).
YesX]No O

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2004:
$118,400,572.

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of February 28, 2005: 6,099,383
Documents Incorporated by Reference
Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with

the SEC in March 2005 pursuant to Regulation 14A are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report of First United Corporation (the “Corporation”) filed on Form 10-K may contain forward-
looking statements within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Readers of this
report should be aware of the speculative nature of “forward-looking statements.” Statements that are not historical in
nature, including those that include the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “should,” “expect,” “believe,” “intend,” and
similar expressions, are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about, among other things, the industry
and the markets in which the Corporation operates, and they are not guarantees of future performance. Whether actual
results will conform to expectations and predictions is subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including
risks and uncertainties discussed in this report; general economic, market, or business conditions; changes in interest
rates, deposit flow, the cost of funds, and demand for loan products and financial services; changes in the Corporation’s
competitive position or competitive actions by other companies; changes in the quality or composition of loan and
investment portfolios; the ability to manage growth; changes in laws or regulations or policies of federal and state
regulators and agencies; and other circumstances beyond the Corporation’s control. Consequently, all of the forward-
looking statements made in this document are qualified by these cautionary statements, and there can be no assurance
that the actual results anticipated will be realized, or if substantially realized, will have the expected consequences on
the Corporation’s business or operations. For a more complete discussion of these risk factors, see Exhibit 99.1 to this
report entitled “Risk Factors.” Except as required by applicable laws, the Corporation does not intend to publish
updates or revisions of forward-looking statements it makes to reflect new information, future events or otherwise.

PART (
Iltem 1. BUSINESS

General

The Corporation is a Maryland corporation chartered in 1985 and a financial holding company registered under
the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHC Act”). The Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries are sometimes referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Registrant” in this annual report.

The Corporation's primary business is serving as the parent company of First United Bank & Trust, a Maryland
trust company (the “Bank™), First United Insurance Group, LLC, a Maryland insurance agency (the “Insurance Group”),
OakFirst Loan Center, Inc., a West Virginia finance company, OakFirst Loan Center, LLC, a Maryland finance company,
(together with OakFirst Loan Center, Inc. the “OakFirst Loan Centers”), and Oakfirst Life Insurance Corporation, an
Arizona reinsurance company (“QOakfirst Life”). OakFirst Loan Center, Inc. has one subsidiary, First United Insurance
Agency, Inc., which is a Maryland insurance agency. In addition, the Bank has two direct subsidiaries, First United
Auto Finance, LLC, an inactive indirect automobile leasing limited liability company, and First United Investment
Trust, which is a Maryland real estate investment trust that invests in mortgage loans (the “Investment Trust”).

Until December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s full-service insurance operations were conducted through its subsidiary,
Gonder Insurance Agency, Inc. (“Gonder”). Effective January 1, 2005, Gonder was merged into the Insurance Group.

As of December 31, 2004, the Corporation had assets of approximately $1,232 million, net loans of approximately
$905 million, and deposits of approximately $851 million. Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 was
approximately $86 million.

The Corporation maintains an Internet site at www.mybankfirstunited.com on which it makes available, free of
charge, its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all
amendments to the foregoing on its Internet site as soon as reasonably practicable after these reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

Banking Products and Services

The Bank operates 24 banking offices, one call center and 34 Automated Teller Machines (“ATM's”) in the
following Maryland Counties: Garrett, Allegany, Washington and Frederick; and in the following West Virginia Counties:
Mineral, Berkeley, Hardy and Monongalia. The Bank is an independent community bank providing a complete range
of retail and commercial banking services to businesses and individuals in its market area. Services offered are essentially
the same as those offered by larger regional institutions that compete with the Bank. The services provided by the
Bank include checking, savings, and money market deposit accounts, business loans, personal loans, mortgage loans,
lines of credit, and consumer-oriented financial services including IRA and employee benefit accounts. In addition,
the Bank provides full brokerage services through a networking arrangement with PrimeVest Financial Services, Inc.,
a full service broker-dealer. The Bank also provides safe deposit and night depository facilities, and a complete line of
insurance products and trust services. As of December 31, 2004, the total market value of assets under the supervision
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of the Bank’s trust department was approximately $395 million. The Bank's deposits are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”).

Lending Activities
The majority of the Corporation’s lending activities are conducted through the Bank.

Most of the Bank’s commercial loans are secured by real estate, commercial equipment, vehicles or other assets
of the business. Repayment is often dependent on the successful operation of the business and may be affected by
adverse conditions in the local economy or real estate market. The financial condition and cash flow of commercial
borrowers is therefore carefully analyzed during the loan approval process, and continues to be monitored by obtaining
business financial statements, personal financial statements and income tax returns. The frequency of this ongoing
analysis depends upon the size and complexity of the credit and collateral that secures the loan. It is also the Bank’s
general policy to obtain personal guarantees from the principals of the commercial loan borrowers.

Commercial real estate loans are primarily those secured by land for residential and commercial development,
agricultural purpose properties, service industry buildings such as restaurants and motels, retail buildings and general
purpose business space. Low loan to value ratio standards, as well as the thorough financial analysis performed and
the Bank’s knowledge of the local economy in which it lends, can reduce the risk associated with these loans.

The risk of loss associated with commercial real estate construction lending is controlled through conservative
underwriting procedures such as loan to value ratios of 80% or less, obtaining additional collateral when prudent, and
closely monitoring construction projects to control disbursement of funds on loans.

The Bank’s residential mortgage loans are primarily variable rate loans. Although the Bank may also originate
fixed rate residential mortgage loans, the Bank is generally acting in a brokering capacity on behalf of other financial
institutions, for which it receives a fee. As with any consumer loan, repayment is dependent on the borrower’s continuing
financial stability, which can be adversely impacted by job loss, divorce, illness, or personal bankruptcy. Residential
mortgage loans exceeding an internal loan-to-value ratio require private mortgage insurance. Title insurance protecting
the Bank’s lien priority, as well as fire and casualty insurance, is required.

Home equity lines of credit, included within the residential mortgage portfolio, are secured by the borrower's
home and can be drawn on at the discretion of the borrower. These lines of credit are at variable interest rates.

The Bank also provides residential real estate construction loans to builders and individuals for single family
dwellings. Residential construction loans are usually granted based upon “as completed” appraisals and are secured
by the property under construction. Site inspections are performed to determine pre-specified stages of completion
before loan proceeds are disbursed. These loans typically have maturities of six to twelve months and may be fixed or
variable rate. Permanent financing for individuals offered by the Bank includes fixed and variable rate loans with
three, five or seven year adjustable rate mortgages.

A variety of other consumer loans are also offered to customers, including indirect and direct auto loans, and
other secured and unsecured lines of credit and term loans. Careful analysis of an applicant’s creditworthiness is
performed before granting credit, and on-going monitoring of loans outstanding is performed in an effort to minimize
risk of loss by identifying problem loans early.

Additionally, the Corporation meets the lending needs of under-served customer groups within its market areas in
part through OakFirst Loan Center, Inc., located in Martinsburg, West Virginia, and OakFirst Loan Center, LLC,
located in Hagerstown, Maryland.

Insurance Activities

The Corporation offers a full range of insurance products and services to customers in its market areas through
the Insurance Group and First United Insurance Agency, Inc. Oakfirst Life reinsures credit life and credit accident and
health insurance written by American General Assurance Company on consumer loans made by the Bank.

Trust Services
The Bank’s Trust Department offers a full range of trust services, including personal trust, investment agency
accounts, charitable trusts, retirement accounts including IRA roll-overs, 401(k) accounts, defined benefit plans, estate

administration and estate planning.

COMPETITION

The banking business, in all of its phases, is highly competitive. Within their market areas, the Corporation and its
affiliates compete with commercial banks, (including local banks and branches or affiliates of other larger banks),
savings and loan associations and credit unions for loans and deposits, with consumer finance companies for loans,
with insurance companies for insurance products, and with other financial institutions for various types of products
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and services. There is also competition for commercial and retail banking business from banks and financial institutions
located outside our market areas.

The primary factors in competing for deposits are interest rates, personalized services, the quality and range of
financial services, convenience of office locations and office hours. The primary factors in competing for loans are
interest rates, loan origination fees, the quality and range of lending services and personalized services.

To compete with other financial services providers, the Corporation relies principally upon local promotional
activities, personal relationships established by officers, directors and employees with its customers and specialized
services tailored to meet its customers’ needs. In those instances in which the Corporation is unable to accommodate
a customer’s needs, it will arrange for those services to be provided by other financial services providers with which
it has a relationship.

Current banking laws facilitate interstate branching and merger activity among banks. Since September 1995,
certain bank holding companies are authorized to acquire banks throughout the United States. In addition, since June
1, 1997, certain banks are permitted to merge with banks organized under the laws of different states. As a result,
interstate banking is now an accepted element of competition in the banking industry and the Corporation may be
brought into competition with institutions with which it does not presently compete.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The following is a summary of the material regulations and policies applicable to the Corporation and its subsidiaries
and is not intended to be a comprehensive discussion. Changes in applicable laws and regulations may have a material
effect on the business of the Corporation and Bank.

General

The Corporation is a financial holding company registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (the “FRB”) under the BHC Act and, as such, is subject to the supervision, examination and reporting
requirements of the BHC Act and the regulations of the FRB.

The Bank is a Maryland trust company subject to the banking laws of Maryland and to regulation by the
Commissioner of Financial Regulation of Maryland, who is required by statute to make at least one examination in
each calendar year (or at 18-month intervals if the Commissioner determines that an examination is unnecessary in a
particular calendar year). The Bank also has offices in West Virginia, and the operations of these offices are subject to
West Virginia laws and to supervision and examination by the West Virginia Division of Banking. The Bank is a
member of the FDIC, so it is also subject to certain provisions of federal law and regulations and examination by the
FDIC. The Bank is also subject to numerous state and federal statutes and regulations that affect the business of
banking in its market areas, including the provision of trust services.

All nonbank affiliates of the Corporation are subject to examination by the FRB, and, as affiliates of the Bank, are
subject to examination by the FDIC and the Commissioner of Financial Regulation of Maryland. In addition, OakFirst
Loan Center, Inc. is subject to licensing and regulation by the West Virginia Division of Banking, OakFirst Loan
Center, LLC is subject to licensing and regulation by the Commissioner of Financial Regulation of Maryland, and the
Insurance Group and First United Insurance Agency, Inc. are each subject to licensing and regulation by various state
insurance authorities. Retail sales of insurance products by these insurance affiliates are also subject to the requirements
of the Interagency Statement on Retail Sales of Nondeposit Investment Products promulgated in 1994 by the FDIC,
the FRB, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, and the Office of Thrift Supervision.

Regulation of Financial Holding Companies

In November 1999, the federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the “GLBA”’) was signed into law. Effective in pertinent
part on March 11, 2000, GLBA revises the BHC Act and repeals the affiliation provisions of the Glass-Steagall Act of
1933, which, taken together, limited the securities, insurance and other non-banking activities of any company that
controls an FDIC insured financial institution. Under GLBA, a bank holding company can elect, subject to certain
qualifications, to become a “financial holding company.” GLBA provides that a financial holding company may
engage in a full range of financial activities, including insurance and securities sales and underwriting activities, and
real estate development, with new expedited notice procedures. Maryland law generally permits Maryland State chartered
banks, including the Bank, to engage in the same activities, directly or through an affiliate, as national banking
associations. GLBA permits certain qualified national banking associations to form financial subsidiaries, which have
broad authority to engage in all financial activities except insurance underwriting, insurance investments, real estate
investment or development, or merchant banking. Thus, GLBA has the effect of broadening the permitted activities of
the Corporation and the Bank.
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The Corporationiand its affiliates are subject to the provisions of Section 23A and Section 23B of the Federal
Reserve Act. Section 23 A limits the amount of loans or extensions of credit to, and investments in, the Corporation
and its nonbank affiliates by the Bank. Section 23B requires that transactions between the Bank and the Corporation
and its nonbank affiliates be on terms and under circumstances that are substantially the same as with non-affiliates.

Under FRB policy, the Corporation is expected to act as a source of strength to its subsidiary banks, and the FRB
may charge the Corporation with engaging in unsafe and unsound practices for failure to commit resources to a
subsidiary bank when required. In addition, under the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act
of 1989 (“FIRREA”™), depository institutions insured by the FDIC can be held liable for any losses incurred by, or
reasonably anticipated to be incurred by, the FDIC in connection with (i) the default of a commonly controlled FDIC-
insured depository institution or (ii) any assistance provided by the FDIC to a commonly controlled FDIC-insured
depository institution in danger of default. Accordingly, in the event that any insured subsidiary of the Corporation
causes a loss to the FDIC, other insured subsidiaries of the Corporation could be required to compensate the FDIC by
reimbursing it for the estimated amount of such loss. Such cross guaranty liabilities generally are superior in priority
to obligations of a financial institution to its shareholders and obligations to other affiliates.

Federal Banking Regulation

Federal banking regulators, such as the FRB and the FDIC, may prohibit the institutions over which they have
supervisory authority from engaging in activities or investments that the agencies believe are unsafe or unsound
banking practices. Federal banking regulators have extensive enforcement authority over the institutions they regulate
to prohibit or correct activities that violate law, regulation or a regulatory agreement or which are deemed to be unsafe
or unsound practices. Enforcement actions may include the appointment of a conservator or receiver, the issuance of
a cease and desist order, the termination of deposit insurance, the imposition of civil money penalties on the institution,
its directors, officers, employees and institution-affiliated parties, the issuance of directives to increase capital, the
issuance of formal and informal agreements, the removal of or restrictions on directors, officers, employees and
institution-affiliated parties, and the enforcement of any such mechanisms through restraining orders or other court
actions.

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, and principal
shareholders or any related interest of such persons, which generally require that such credit extensions be made on
substantially the same terms as are available to third parties dealing with the Bank and not involve more than the
normal risk of repayment. Other laws tie the maximum amount that may be loaned to any one customer and its related
interests to capital levels.

As part of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”), each federal banking
regulator adopted non-capital safety and soundness standards for institutions under its authority. These standards
include internal controls, information systems and internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting,
interest rate exposure, asset growth, and compensation, fees and benefits. An institution that fails to meet those standards
may be required by the agency to develop a plan acceptable to meet the standards. Failure to submit or implement such
a plan may subject the institution to regulatory sanctions. The Corporation, on behalf of the Bank, believes that the
Bank meets substantially all standards that have been adopted. FDICIA also imposes new capital standards on insured
depository institutions.

The Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) requires that, in connection with the examination of financial
institutions within their jurisdictions, the FDIC evaluate the record of the financial institution in meeting the credit
needs of their communities including low and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound
operation of those banks. These factors are also considered by all regulatory agencies in evaluating mergers, acquisitions
and applications to open a branch or facility. As of the date of its most recent examination report, the Bank has a CRA
rating of “Satisfactory.”

As a FDIC member institution, the Bank’s deposits are insured to a maximum of $100,000 per depositor through
the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”), administered by the FDIC, and the Bank is required to pay semi-annual deposit
insurance premium assessments to the FDIC. The BIF assessment rates are based upon a matrix that takes into account
a bank's capital level and supervisory rating. The Bank paid $.2 million in FDIC premiums in 2004.

For a discussion of the regulatory capital requirements and related restrictions to which the Corporation and the
Bank are subject, see ““Capital Requirements” above.
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CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

FDICIA established a system of prompt corrective action to resolve the problems of undercapitalized institutions.
Under this system the federal banking regulators are required to rate supervised institutions on the basis of five capital
categories: “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized,” and
“critically undercapitalized;” and to take certain mandatory actions, and are authorized to take other discretionary
actions, with respect to institutions in the three undercapitalized categories. The severity of the actions will depend
upon the category in which the institution is placed. A depository institution is “well capitalized” if it has a total risk
based capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 risk based capital ratio of 6% or greater, and a leverage ratio of 5% or
greater and is not subject to any order, regulatory agreement, or written directive to meet and maintain a specific
capital level for any capital measure. An “adequately capitalized” institution is defined as one that has a total risk
based capital ratio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 risk based capital ratio of 4% or greater and a leverage ratio of 4% or
greater (or 3% or greater in the case of a bank with a composite CAMEL rating of 1).

FDICIA generally prohibits a depository institution from making any capital distribution, including the payment
of cash dividends, or paying a management fee to its holding company if the depository institution would thereafter be
undercapitalized. Undercapitalized depository institutions are subject to growth limitations and are required to submit
capital restoration plans. For a capital restoration plan to be acceptable, the depository institution’s parent holding
company must guarantee (subject to certain limitations) that the institution will comply with such capital restoration
plan.

Significantly undercapitalized depository institutions may be subject to a number of other requirements and
restrictions, including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to become adequately capitalized and requirements to
reduce total assets and stop accepting deposits from correspondent banks. Critically undercapitalized depository
institutions are subject to the appointment of a receiver or conservator, generally within 90 days of the date such
institution is determined to be critically undercapitalized.

Information about the Corporation's capital resources is provided in this report under Item 7 of Part II,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Capital Resources™.
Information about the capital ratios of the Corporation and of the Bank as of December 31, 2004 may be found in Note
2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

USA PATRIOT Act

Congress adopted the USA PATRIOT Act (the “Patriot Act”) on October 26, 2001 in response to the terrorist
attacks that occurred on September 11, 2001. Under the Patriot Act, certain financial institutions, including banks, are
required to maintain and prepare additional records and reports that are designed to assist the government’s efforts to
combat terrorism. The Patriot Act includes sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency laws and
required additional regulations, including, among other things, standards for verifying client identification when
opening an account and roles to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators and law enforcement
entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money laundering.

Federal Securities Law

The shares of the Corporation’s common stock are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) under Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Corporation
is subject to information reporting, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements of the Exchange
Act. The federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 made several changes to the Exchange Act and also required the SEC
and the Nasdaq Stock Market to adopt new rules. These changes and new rules impose additional requirements and
restrictions on the Corporation, including, among other things, restrictions on loans to and other transactions with
insiders, additional disclosure requirements in the reports and other documents that the Corporation files with the
SEC, new director independence requirements, certain Board of Director committee requirements, and other corporate
governance requirements.
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Governmental Monetary and Credit Policies and Economic Controls

The earnings and:growth of the banking industry and ultimately of the Bank are affected by the monetary and
credit policies of governmental authorities, including the FRB. An important function of the FRB is to regulate the
national supply of bank credit in order to control recessionary and inflationary pressures. Among the instruments of
monetary policy used by the FRB to implement these objectives are open market operations in U.S. Government
securities, changes in the federal funds rate, changes in the discount rate of member bank borrowings, and changes in
reserve requirements against member bank deposits. These means are used in varying combinations to influence
overall growth of bank loans, investments and deposits and may also affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on
deposits. The monetary policies of the FRB authorities have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial
banks in the past and are expected to continue to have such an effect in the future. In view of changing conditions in
the national economy and in the money markets, as well as the effect of actions by monetary and fiscal authorities,
including the FRB, no prediction can be made as to possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan
demand or their effect on the business and earnings of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Employees

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation and its subsidiaries employed approximately 444 individuals, of whom
331 were full-time employees.

Iltem 2. PROPERTIES

The main office of the Corporation and the Bank occupies approximately 29,000 square feet at 19 South Second
Street, Oakland, Maryland. These premises are owned by the Corporation. The Corporation owns seventeen of its
bank offices and leases'seven bank offices and three non-bank subsidiary offices. Total rent expense on the leased
offices was $.4 million in 2004.

ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Corporation and its affiliates are at times, in the ordinary course of business, subject to legal actions. However,
to the knowledge of management, the Corporation is not currently subject to any such legal action.

ltem 4. SUBMISSION:OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART Il

ltem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of the Corporation’s common stock are listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “FUNC”.
Between July 9, 2003 and June 25, 2004, the shares of the Corporation’s common stock were included in the Russell
3000(R) Index, which is reconstituted each year to include the 3,000 largest U.S. companies ranked by market
capitalization. As of February 28, 2005, the Corporation had 2,203 shareholders of record. The high and low sales
prices for, and the cash dividends declared on, the shares of the Corporation’s common stock for each quarterly period
of 2004 and 2003 are set forth below. These prices reflect inter-dealer prices and may not include retail mark-up,
mark-down or commissions, and they may not represent actual transactions.

Dividends
2004 High Low Declared
ISEQUATET .....cviviiveeeive et a s s e v e s e s e e s e enr e $26.91 $22.30 $.180
200 QUATEET 11t 24.96 19.25 .180
31d QUATTET ..ottt ettt e 21.64 19.35 .180
Ath QUATTET ..ovveicie e rerec e sbeces e s besesse e e e st baesessesrereeeea 21.34 19.65 185
2003
Ist Quarter $22.10 $16.06 $.175
2nd Quarter 25.50 19.60 175
3rd Quarter 24.62 20.17 175
B QUATTET ...t ettt et et 25.99 21.78 .180

Cash dividends are typically declared on a quarterly basis and are at the discretion of the Corporation’s Board of
Directors. Dividends to shareholders are generally dependent on the ability of the Corporation's subsidiaries, especially
the Bank, to declare dividends to the Corporation. The ability of these entities to declare dividends are limited by
federal and state banking laws and/or state corporate laws. Further information about these limitations may be found in
Note 12 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Risk Factor entitled “Our Ability to Pay Dividends
is Limited,” each of which is incorporated here by reference. Accordingly, there is no guarantee that dividends will be
declared in any fiscal quarter. '

Market makers for the Corporation’s common stock are:

Ferris Baker Watts Scott and Stringfellow, Inc.
12 North Liberty St. 909 East Main Street
Cumberland, MD 21502 _ Richmond, VA 23219

(301) 724-7161 (804) 643-1811

(800) 776-0629 (800) 552-7757

113 S. Potomac St.
Hagerstown, MD 21740
(301) 733-7111

(800) 344-4413

Equity Compensation Plan Information

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had no equity compensation plan or arrangement in effect under which
shares of common stock may be issued to its directors or officers.

Iltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain selected financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2004 and is
qualified in its entirety by the detailed information and financial statements, including notes thereto, included elsewhere
or incorporated by reference in this annual report. This data should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this annual report and in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” below.
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(In thousands, except per share data)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Balance Sheet Data
TOtAl ASSELS .....ovevvecerae e resenes $1,231,877  $1,108,241 $954,388 £818,824 $848,300
Net Loans ......c.oee.. S URURPURORON 904,635 786,051 659,758 603,801 611,975
Investment SECUTTtES ......c..ccverrvrrrvereereenesinn. 210,661 223,615 215,236 130,692 152,858
Deposits ......covvereernmererrmneenins e 850,661 750,161 610,460 588,518 636,819
Long-term Borrowings 175,415 191,735 198,772 120,104 122,000
Shareholders’ EQUIty ......cccovvnivcrvevennnenncciennns 86,356 84,191 79,283 71,076 65,511
Operating Data '
Interest INCOME ....ovvevvvveneiiriceciiaes e $ 60,682 $ 57,703 $ 57,589 $ 63,229 $ 63,516
Interest EXPENSe .......ccovvvvverenrrenvernnnenennsccnnannen 24,016 23,601 25,702 33,378 35,039
Net Interest Income .........occovevevnvvevnreciiccnnnncnns 36,666 34,102 31,887 29,851 28,477
Provision for Loan LOSSeS ...ovverevrersrrennses 2,534 833 1,506 2,926 2,198
Other Operating Income .........cccoovveevvrrrccnrennne 12,971 11,867 9,007 9,314 7,789
Other Operating EXpense .........c..ccocvevevveeensn 35,969 29,821 26,038 23,381 21,995
Income Before Tax ...... ‘,. ................................... 11,134 15,315 13,350 12,858 12,073
Income Tax 3,507 4,566 3,695 3,689 3,762
Net Income $ 7,627 $ 10,749 $ 9,655 $ 9,169 $ 8,311
Per Share Data
Net INCOME ...ovveveieeiieere et $1.25 $1.77 $1.59 $1.51 $1.37
Dividends Paid ...l 72 70 .68 .66 .64
Book Value .......cccoeviivivrneiniccrenieereneseeniens 14.17 13.83 13.04 11.69 10.77
Significant Ratios
Return on Average Assets .65% 1.03% 1.13% 1.11% 1.03%
Return on Average Equity 8.91 13.10 12.75 13.26 13.40
Dividend Payout Ratio ......ccc.cocevereicrcrernneens 57.48 39.65 42.76 43.71 46.72
Average Equity to Average ASsets ................. 7.28 7.88 8.84 8.34 7.68
Total Risk-based Capital Ratio ............c......... 12.24 11.77 14.31 15.54 14.55
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets .......... 10.81 11.04 13.76 14.67 13.52

Tier I Capital to Average Assets ............c...... 8.44 8.72 11.72 11.22 10.66

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2004 which appear elsewhere in this report.

(10]




Executive Summary

The Corporation is a financial holding company which, through its bank and non-bank subsidiaries, provides an
array of financial products and services primarily to customers in four Western Maryland counties and four Northeastern
West Virginia counties. Its principal operating subsidiary is the Bank, which consists of a community banking network
of 24 banking offices located throughout its market area. The Corporation’s primary sources of revenue are interest
income earned from its loan and investment securities portfolios and fees earned from financial services provided to
customers,

The Corporation’s 2004 net income was $7.6 million, a decrease of 29% from 2003 net income of $10.7 million.
Earnings per share in 2004 declined to $1.25 per share, compared to $1.77 per share in 2003. The decrease in 2004 net
income was partly due to the Corporation’s strategic decisions to redeem certain long term borrowings which adversely
impacted net income in the current year. Management expects this to positively impact net income in future periods.
The early redemption of long-term borrowings included the following:

Early Redemption of FHLB Advances—In December 2004, the Bank refinanced $21.5 million of Federal Home
Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB") borrowings resulting in an early redemption penalty of $1.8 million that was charged
to 2004 operations (affecting 2004 earnings per share by approximately $0.20 per share, net of tax). These borrowings
were refinanced with a short-term, fixed rate FHLB advance of $23.3 million. The refinanced advance had an average
rate of 5.91%, and had scheduled maturities between February 2008 and September 2009. The new advance has a
fixed rate of 2.6%, is not convertible and matures in March 2005. The advance will be repaid from an increase in
money market funds during the first quarter of 2005. The refinancing provided the Bank with the ability to lower its
interest expense and reduce its reliance on longer-term, fixed rate borrowings.

Issuance/Redemption of Junior Subordinated Debentures—The Corporation issued approximately $35.9 million
of Junior Subordinated Debentures (“Debentures”) in 2004, and redeemed approximately $23.7 million of Debentures.
The net result of these issuances and redemptions was to reduce the interest rate on long-term borrowings. $20.6
million of Debentures were issued in March 2004, with a five year fixed rate of 6.02%, converting to a floating rate
thereafter and maturing in 2034. $10.3 million of Debentures were also issued in March 2004, with a floating interest
rate (3.86% at issuance) also maturing in 2034. In December 2004, the Corporation issued an additional $5.0 million
of Debentures with a five year fixed rate of 5.88%, converting to a floating rate thereafter and maturing in 2014. On
September 30, 2004, the Corporation redeemed all of its 9.375%, 30-year Junior Subordinated Debentures that it had
issued in 1999, for a redemption price of $23.7 million. In connection with this redemption, approximately $.9 million
of unamortized issuance costs were expensed (affecting 2004 earnings per share by approximately $0.10 per share,
net of tax). ,

Operations in 2004 were also impacted by the following significant factors:

Continued Geographic Expansion—The Bank continues to invest in its core market areas. A new branch office
opened in Martinsburg, West Virginia during 2004. In addition, approximately $4.5 million was spent in 2004 for
several land acquisitions in a new market area, Morgantown, West Virginia. Construction of the first branch office in
this market area was substantially completed at the end of 2004, and the branch was opened February 28, 2005.

Focus on Loan Growth/Impact on Net Interest Margin—The Corporation, through the Bank, continued to focus
in 2004 on the growth of its loan portfolio in all of its market areas, resulting in a net increase in the loan portfolio of
$119 million during 2004. A significant portion of the new loans recorded in 2004 were variable rate loans, as opposed
to longer term fixed rate loans, thereby reducing the Bank’s exposure to reduced earnings in a rising interest rate
environment. The low level of interest rates throughout 2004 resulted in these new variable rate loans being recorded
initially at low rates. However, as the Bank is asset sensitive at the end of 2004, rising interest rates will result in these
loans re-pricing at higher rates in future periods. While the impact of the low interest rate environment and the
Corporation’s strategic focus on its asset sensitive position negatively impacted net interest income by $3.0 million,
the growth in loans positively impacted the increase in net interest income by $5.4 million. This resulted in an overall
increase in net interest income of $2.4 million on a fully taxable equivalent basis as shown in Table 2.

The Bank funded only a portion of its 2004 loan growth from deposits generated in its local market areas and
relied on the purchase of brokered certificates of deposits, which are generally at higher fixed rates, to fund the
remainder of loan growth. While the dollar amount of net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis increased
by $2.4 million (6.9%) in 2004, the reliance on higher rate deposits, coupled with the lower initial rates on new
adjustable rate loans, resulted in a compression of the net interest margin from 3.58% in 2003 to 3.43% in 2004.

Loan Quality and the Allowance for Loan Losses—The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2004 of $6.8
million exceeds by four times the amount of net loan charge-offs during 2004. The allowance was .75% of year-end
loans and 1.7 times total non-accrual loans at year-end 2004, compared to .75% and 2.1 times at December 31, 2003,
respectively. The provision for loan losses increased to $2.5 million in 2004 from $.8 million in 2003. This increase
was necessitated in response to the significant increase of loans in the loan portfolio as well as to provide for specific
losses (approximately $.9 million) on two commercial loans. Management has analyzed the allowance for loan losses
as of December 31, 2004 and concluded that the allowance is adequate.
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Other Operating Income/Other Operating Expense—Qther operating income in 2004 increased by $1.1 million
over 2003 (9.3%) driven primarily by increases in service charge income from deposit products, trust income and
insurance premium income. Excluding the aforementioned $2.7 million of expenses related to the early redemption of
long-term FHLB advances and junior subordinated debentures, operating expenses increased by $3.4 million when
compared to 2003. Salaries and benefits expense also increased in 2004 by approximately $1.0 million, reflecting
general salary increases, staffing additions in key areas, and a full year of compensation costs related to the Huntington
branches acquired in mid-2003. The Corporation also incurred additional professional fees in 2004 related to compliance
with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and additional costs for conversion of its network lines associated with branch expansion
and modernization.

Dividends—Despite the reduced level of earnings in 2004, the Corporation maintained and increased its dividend
to shareholders. Dividends increased to $0.72 per share in 2004, a 2.8% increase from $0.70 per share in 2003. The
Corporation has paid cash dividends consistently since 1985, the year in which the holding company was formed.

The Corporation will continue to face risks and challenges in the future, including: changes in local economic
conditions in its core geographic markets; potential yield compression on loan and deposit products by existing
competitors and potential new entrants in its markets; changes in interest rates; and changes to existing federal and
state legislation and regulations over banks and financial holding companies. For a more complete discussion of these
risk factors, see Exhibit:99.1 “Risk Factors.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

This discussion and analysis of the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations is based upon the
Corporation’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent:liabilities. (See Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) On an on-going
basis, management evaluates estimates, including those related to loan losses and intangible assets. Management
bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions orconditions. Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

Allowance for Loan Losses

The most critical accounting policy applied by the Corporation is that related to the valuation of the loan portfolio.
A variety of estimates impact the carrying value of the loan portfolio, including the calculation of the allowance for
loan losses, valuation of underlying collateral, the timing of loan charge-offs and the placement of loans on non-
accrual status. The allowance is established and maintained at a level that management believes is adequate to cover
losses resulting from the inability of borrowers to make required payment on loans. Estimates for loan losses are
arrived at by analyzing risks associated with the specific loans and the loan portfolio, current and historical trends in
delinquencies and charge-offs, and changes in the size and composition of the loan portfolio. The analysis also requires
consideration of the economic climate and direction, change in lending rates, political conditions, legislation impacting
the banking industry and économic conditions specific to Western Maryland and Northeastern West Virginia. Because
the calculation of the allowance for loan losses relies on management's estimates and judgments relating to inherently
uncertain events, actual results may differ from management's estimates.

The allowance for loan losses is also discussed in the “Allowance and Provision for Loan Losses” section of this
Management's Discussion and Analysis and in Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, establishes standards for the amortization of acquired intangible assets and the non-amortization and impairment
assessment of goodwill. The Corporation has $3.2 million of core deposit intangible assets which are subject to
amortization and $11.9 million in goodwill primarily related to the Huntington branch acquisition, which is not subject
to periodic amortization.

Goodwill arising frombusiness combinations represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible elements
in the business acquired. The Corporation's goodwill relates to value inherent in the banking business and the value is
dependent upon the Corporation's ability to provide quality, cost effective services in a highly competitive local market.
This ability relies upon continuing investments in processing systems, the development of value-added service features
and the ease of use of the Corporation's services. As such, goodwill value is supported ultimately by revenue that is
driven by the volume of business transacted. A decline in earnings as a result of a lack of growth or the inability to
deliver cost effective services over sustained periods can lead to impairment of goodwill which could adversely impact
earnings in future periods. SFAS No. 142 requires an annual evaluation of goodwill for impairment. The determination
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of whether or not these assets are impaired involves significant judgments. The Corporation has concluded that the
recorded value of goodwill was not impaired as a result of the evaluation. However, future changes in strategy and/or
market conditions could significantly impact these judgments and require adjustments to recorded asset balances.

Recent Developments

Management expects to liquidate Oakfirst Life by transferring substantially all of its assets to the Corporation
during the second quarter of 2005. Currently, credit life and credit accident and health insurance are offered to the
Corporation’s borrowers through, and are underwritten in part by, Oakfirst Life. Because of recent changes in federal
tax law, the income generated by Oakfirst Life from this line of business is no longer exempt from federal income tax,
which has been one of the significant benefits of offering these products through Oakfirst Life. Moreover, because the
Corporation’s lending operations have shifted away from direct automobile Joans in recent periods, the Corporation is
recognizing smaller underwriting profits from the sale of these insurance products. In light of the foregoing, manage-
ment believes that it would be more beneficial to the Corporation if these insurance products were offered on a commis-
sion-only basis through the Corporation’s licensed insurance agents rather than through Oakfirst Life. Management
does not expect the liquidation or the shift in strategy to have a material adverse impact on the financial condition or
results of operations of the Corporation.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME REVIEW

Net interest income

Net interest income is the largest source of operating revenue. Net interest income is the difference between the
interest earned on interest-earning assets and the interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities. For analytical and
discussion purposes, net interest income is adjusted to a taxable equivalent basis to facilitate performance comparisons
between taxable and tax-exempt assets by increasing tax-exempt income by an amount equal to the federal income
taxes that would have been paid if this income were taxable at the statutorily applicable rate. The table below summarizes
net interest income {(on a taxable equivalent basis) for the years 2002-2004 (doHars in thousands).

2004 2003 2002
INtETESt INCOME .vvverveeeiveres e sreerere e veseennenes $61,380 $58,558 $58,430
Interest EXPENSE ...ccvveveerrreereereercn e ecne e 24,016 23,601 25,702
Net IBtErest INCOME .oovvveeiverieeeeeresreee oo $37,364 $34,957 $32,728
Net interest margin % .....ccvcvveeenvveencenerenccnincnnens 3.43% 3.58% 4.08%

Net interest income increased $2.4 million (6.9%) in 2004 when compared to 2003, due primarily to the increase
in interest income of $2.8 million, offset by a slight increase in interest expense of $.4 million. As reflected in the
income statement, interest income from loans increased by $3.9 million, due to the $133.7 million increase in the
average balance of loans in 2004, offset by a 60 basis point decrease in the average yield on loans. During 2004, the
Bank implemented a loan pricing model, that is being used to set pricing for mortgage, commercial and consumer
loan products throughout the Bank, and ensures loan pricing is consistent with targeted net interest margins.

The increase in total interest expense in 2004 was due to the decline in interest expense on deposits of $.7 million
(5.2%) offset by increased interest expense on borrowings of §1.1 million (10.1%). Interest expense on deposits
declined primarily due to the 83 basis point decrease in the average yield on time deposits less than $100,000. The
increase in interest expense or borrowings was primarily due to the $27.7 million increase in the average balance of
short-term borrowings coupled with the 58 basis point increase in average yield on these borrowings.

Net interest income increased $2.2 million (7%) in 2003 when compared to 2002 due primarily to a reduction in
interest expense. Interest income was virtually unchanged as the increase in average interest-earning assets of $174
million (22%) in 2003 over 2002, was offset by a 129 basis point decline in yield on such earning assets. Although
interest-bearing liabilities increased $166 million {23%) in 2003 over 2002, a 26% decrease in the effective rate of
these interest-bearing liabilities of 94 basis points resulted in a net decrease in interest expense of $2.1 million.

The composition of interest income on loans has increased with the increase in loans as a percentage of interest
earning assets. During the past three years, the composition of interest income is shown below:

% of Total Interest Income

2004 2003 2002
Interest and fees on 10aNS ......cocoevvevvveiveeveeeenns 88% 86% 85%
Interest on investment securities...........o........ 12% 14% 15%




Table 1 sets forth the average balances, net interest income and expense and average yields and rates for the
Corporation’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities for 2004, 2003 and 2002. Table 2 sets forth an
analysis of volume and rate changes in interest income and interest expense of the Corporation’s average interest-
earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities for 2004, 2003 and 2002. This table distinguishes between the
changes related to average outstanding balances (changes in volume holding the interest rate constant) and the changes
related to average interest rates (changes in average rate holding the outstanding balance constant).

‘Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Interest Rates and Interest Differential—Tax Equivalent Basis
(Dollars in thousands)

Table 1
For the Years Ended December 31
2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance  Interest Yield/Rate Balance Intferest Yield/Rate
Assets
LOANS oo $861,255 $53,313  6.19% $ 727,532  $49,403 6.79% $620,049 $49,095 7.92%
Investment securities:
Taxable .......ccoovvvecniiiiei. 191,135 5819  3.04 196,175 6,484 330 138,102 6,699 4.85
Non taxable ....coooeveireniennnn. 23,311 1,854 7095 30,355 2,195  7.23 29,428 2,124 7.22
Total ....ccooeveiveenrciieinnen 214,446 7,673  3.58 226,530 8,679 3.83 167,530 8,823 5.27
Federal funds sold ............. - 2,043 35 1.71 4,204 39 93 3,782 63 1.67
Interest-bearing deposits
with other banks ................. 3,583 56 1.57 8,967 101 1.13 3,155 77 243
Other interest earning assets.... 8,439 303 3.59 8,818 336 3.81 7,081 371 524
Total earning assets ............... 1,089,766 61,380 5.63 976,051 58,558  6.00 801,597 58429 7.29
Allowance for loan losses........ (6,150) (6,151) (5,984)
Non-earning assets 71,473 61,718
Total Assets .........cccoevvveeierinnan, $1,041,373 $857,331
Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing
demand deposits .................. $ 279,217 §$ 2,699 97% $213,420 $1,755 .82% $146,313 $1,671 1.14%
Savings deposits ........cccconreene. 63,471 237 37 53,753 218 40 43,655 269 62
Time deposits:
Less than $100................. . 209,708 4,950 236 219,817 7,002 3.19 229,114 10,849 4.74
$100 or more .........ceurnene, 149,113 4,222 2.83 139,571 3,800 2.72 102,201 4,001 3.91
Short-term borrowings ............ 82,747 1,153 1.39 55,006 447 81 35,826 289 .81
Long-term borrowings............. 205,193 10,755 5.23 190,984 10,379 5.43 149,434 8,623 5.77
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ..............ccoeveunins ... 989,449 24,016 243 872,551 23,601 2.70 706,543 25,702 3.64
Noninterest-bearing depositsl... 94,871 75,840 65,284
Other liabilities .....ccocevivinenen, 8,266 10,954 9,759
Shareholders’ equity ................ 85,760 82,028 75,745
Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity ......... $1,178,346 $1,041,373 $857,331
Net interest income and spread 37,364 3.20% $34,957 3.30% $32,727 3.65%
Net interest margin .................. 3.43% 3.58% 4.08%
Notes:

—The above table reflects the averagerates earned or paid stated on a tax equivalent basis assuming a tax rate of 35% for 2004 and 34% for 2003 and 2002. The fully
taxable equivalent adjustments for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $698, $855, and $841, respectively.

—The average balances of non-accrualiloans for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, which were reported in the average loan balances for these years,
were $4,400, $2,240, and $1,906, respectively.

—Net interest margin is calculated as net interest income divided by average earning assets.
—The average yields on investments are based on amortized cost. i
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Interest Variance Analysis (1)
(In thousands and tax equivalent basis)

Table 2
2004 Compared To 2003 2003 Compared To 2002
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
Interest income:
LOANS w..cooviimiiceirvenee e e $ 8,278 $(4,368) $ 3910 $ 7,299 $(6991) § 308
Taxable investments ........c.coeevecvreens (153) (513) (666) 1,919 (2,135) (216)
Non-taxable investments.................... C(560) 220 (340) 67 4 71
Federal funds sold .........cccoorvvcenennncen. 37 33 4) 4 28) 24)
Other interest earning assets .............. 297) 219 (78) 373 (384) an
Total interest income ...........cooe.... 7,231 (4,409) 2,822 9,662 (9,534) 128
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing demand deposits ....... 636 308 944 552 (468) 84
Savings deposits .........cceeeierrinnnnee 36 (18) 18 40 %2) (52)
Time deposits less than $100 .............. (239) (1,812) (2,051) 297) (3,550) (3,847)
Time deposits $100 or more ............... 270 152 422 1,017 (1,218) (201)
Short-term borrowings ......ccccovrvveceeen 387 319 706 156 2 154
Long-term bOITOWings ......c.cccoeeevcevnne 745 (369) 376 2,258 (501) 1,757
Total interest expense .................... 1,835 (1,420) 415 3,726 (5,831) (2,105)
Net interest iNCOME......oococvverenvrerverncnnens $ 5,396 $(2,589) § 2407 $ 5,936 $(3,703) $ 2,233

(1) The change in interest income/expense due to both volume and rate has been allocated to volume and rate changes
in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses increased to $2.5 million in 2004, compared to $.8 million in 2003. The $1.7 million
increase in the provision was due to the 15% increase in the loan portfolio of $119 million during 2004, the increase
in'net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans to .20% in 2004 from .17% in 2003, and to provide for specific
losses of approximately $.9 million on two commercial loans. The provision for loan losses decreased by $.7 million
in 2003 when compared to 2002 due to several factors, including the slight decrease in overall net charge-offs as a
percentage of total average loans (.17% in 2003 versus .19% in 2002) and the Corporation’s assessment that the
balance of the allowance for loan losses was adequate as of December 31, 2003.

Other Operating Income

The following table shows the major components of other operating income for the past three years (in
thousands) and the percentage changes during these years:
2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002

2004 2003 2002 % Change % Change
Service charges on deposit 8CCOUNTS .......cccoceveverieniniennns $ 3,824 $ 3,175 $2,718 20.4% 16.8%
Other service charge NCOME .......ovveirerreererermnmncreniinierenens 925 720 714 28.5% 8%
Trust department INCOME ........oeceerevevvririeriieeie e erercnereens 3,153 2,520 2,146 25.1% 17.4%
Brokerage cOMmMISSION ........cocoevvevecriemriniiecesierrecseeiiennenn 720 701 572 2.7% 22.6%
Insurance premium ifCOME .o..ovvvcverieeieerineereecirenieeeveens 1,448 1,367 1,215 5.9% 12.5%
Security gains (I0SS€8) ....cc.cornreriorrrccrmnne e 703 1,009 (366) (30.3%) *
Bank owned life insurance (BOLI) ....cooccovreirvcnrcriicens 626 938 960 (33.3%) (2.3%)
Other INCOME ......covvriie ettt eeas 1,572 1,437 1,048 9.3% 37.1%
Total other operating iNCOME .......v.covvrvecerermnmvecnrireseecennens $12,971 $11,867 $9,007 9.3% 31.8%

*negligible
As the table above illustrates, other operating income has continued to increase steadily during the past three
years, with a $1.1 million increase in 2004 (9.3%) and a $2.9 million (31.8%) increase in 2003.
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Service charges on deposit accounts and other service charge income increased in 2004 versus 2003 and in 2003
versus 2002, correlating to the increases in average non-interest bearing deposits during those periods of $19.0 million
(25%) and $10.6 million (16%), respectively. Service charges on deposit accounts also increased due to increased
emphasis on an account overdraft product. Service charge related income constitutes 37%, 33%, and 38% of other
operating income in 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Trust Department income is directly affected by the performance of the equity and bond markets, and by the
amount of assets under management. Trust income has increased steadily during the past three years as a result of
- development efforts in this area and increases in the average market value of assets under management in the Trust
Department, which was $395, $332 and $300 million for years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Securities gains (losses) are the most variable component of other operating income. Securities gains for 2004
include gross gains of $.7 million. Gains for 2004 resulted primarily from the sale of investments held by the Bank’s
Delaware subsidiary, First United Securities, Inc. (“FUS”) in order to utilize certain net operating loss carryforwards
in that subsidiary prior to its liquidation in May 2004. Securities gains for 2003 include gross gains of $1.7 million,
offset by securities losses of $.7 million. Gains for 2003 resulted from the decision to sell certain mortgage-backed
securities that were exhibiting accelerated paybacks due to the historically low interest rate environment, as well as
the sale of corporate and other debt securities to utilize certain capital loss carryforwards. The gross securities losses
in 2003 resulted primarily from the write-down and ultimate sale of Freddie Mac Preferred equity securities exhibiting
other-than-temporary impairment. These preferred securities initially exhibited other-than-temporary impairment in
2002, which resulted in a $.4 million write down that year.

Other Operating Expense

2004 other operating expense increased $6.1 million (21%) over 2003. 2003 other operating expense increased
$3.8 million (15%) over 2002. The following table shows the major components of other operating expense for the
past three years (in thousands):

' 2004 v. 2003 2003 v. 2002

2004 2003 2002 % Change % Change
Salaries and employee benefits .........ccoovvcvrrvrenciencnnnnn $16,907 $15,995 $13,922 5.7% 14.9%
Other expenses ..o erteete et ete e e et e e e te e e e eaaeereean 10,360 8,853 7,573 17.0% 16.9%
EQUIPIENT .eviiviieiiiieiiisiecis et s e 2,952 2,426 2,090 21.7% 16.1%
Expenses related to early redemption of
long-term borrowings ... 2,728 — — — —
OCCUPANCY ..o eoiere e 1,642 1,330 1,293 23.4% 2.9%
Data processing ......cc..ccveecveverurnervnnes 1,380 1,217 1,160 13.4% 4.9%
Total other operating expense ...... $35,969  $29,821  $26,038 20.6%  14.5%

Salaries and employee benefits represent approximately 47% of total other operating expenses in 2004, compared
to 54% and 53% in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Salaries and wages increased by $0.9 million in 2004 over 2003, and
$2.1 million in 2003 over 2002. These increases are directly related to increased staffing to support the Corporation’s
growth objectives and increasing health insurance costs. 2004 salaries and benefits expense also includes a full year of
compensation costs related to the branches acquired in 2003 from the Huntington National Bank. The addition of
these branches added $0.5 million to salaries and benefits expense in 2003 when compared to 2002.

Other expenses increased by $1.5 million in 2004 compared to 2003, due to a full year of amortization expense
related to the core deposit intangible ($.6 million in 2004 compared to $.2 million in 2003), additional professional
fees incurred in 2004 to comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and due to costs related to conversion
of our network lines related to branch expansion and modernization. Other expenses in 2003 increased $1.3 million,
or 17% in 2003 when compared to 2002. This increase was attributable to increases in professional fees, outside
service providers, insurance costs, and first year amortization of the core deposit amortization related to the Huntington
branch acquisition.

Expenses related to early redemption of long-term borrowings consisted of a $1.8 million early payment penalty
related to refinance of the FHLB advance and the $.9 million write-off of unamortized issuance costs related to the early
redemption of subordinated debentures.

Occupancy and equipment expenses have increased $.8 million in 2004, compared to an increase of $.4 million in
2003. This increase is due'to a full year of operating expenses in 2004 related to the Huntington branch acquisition in
mid-2003. The opening of our new branch office in Martinsburg, West Virginia and maintenance contracts related to the
Bank's new bank-wide security system also contributed to the increase.
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Applicable Income Taxes

Income tax expense amounted to $3.5 million in 2004, compared to $4.6 million in 2003 and $3.7 million in
2002. The resulting effective tax rates were 31.5%, 30% and 28% for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
increase in the 2004 effective tax rate compared to 2003 is due primarily to the Bank’s liquidation of First
United Capital Investments in February 2004, and its other Delaware subsidiary, First United Securites, [nc. in
May 2004. The principal items which lowered the Corporation’s effective tax rates from the federal statutory
rate in 2004, 2003 and 2002 are tax-exempt income from securities and loans, and tax-exempt BOLI income.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

Overview

The Corporation’s total assets reached $1.23 billion at December 31, 2004, representing an increase of $123.6
million (11.1%) from year-end 2003.

The 2004 year-end asset mix shows the steady increase in loans as a percentage of total assets over the past three

years, as illustrated below:
Year End Percentage of Total Assets

2004 2003 2002

NE10ANS ..cveiiiiiii e 73% 71% 69%
INVESLMENLS ..eeeiirieeeeie et rers e 17% 20% 22%

Similarly, the year-end liability mix shows a steady increase in total deposits as a percentage of total liabilities

during the th iod, as illustrated below:
uting the three year period, as strated b Year End Percentage of Total Liabilities

2004 2003 2002

Total depOSItS ...vivvevirieniciiiincc e 74% 73% 70%
Total borrowings ..........cccovvvevriecineccrnrcrirneenns 25% 26% 29%

Loan Portfolio

The Corporation, through the Bank and the OakFirst Loan Centers, is actively engaged in originating loans to
customers primarily in Garrett, Allegany, Washington, and Frederick Counties in Maryland; Mineral, Hardy, Berkeley,
Monongalia Counties in West Virginia; and the surrounding regions of West Virginia and Pennsylvania. The Corporation
has policies and procedures designed to mitigate credit risk and to maintain the quality of its loan portfolio. These
policies include underwriting standards for new credits and the continuous monitoring and reporting of asset quality
and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. These policies, coupled with ongoing training efforts, have provided
an effective check and balance for the risk associated with the lending process. Lending authority is based on the size
and type of the loan, and the experience of the lending officer.

Commercial loans are collateralized primarily by real estate, and to a lesser extent, by equipment and vehicles.
Unsecured commercial loans represent an insignificant portion of total commercial loans. Residential mortgage loans
are collateralized by the related property. Any residential mortgage loan exceeding an internal loan-to-value ratio
requires private mortgage insurance. Installment loans are typically collateralized, with loan-to-value ratios which are
established based on the financial condition of the borrower. The Corporation will also make unsecured consumer
loans to qualified borrowers meeting the underwriting standards of the Corporation.

Table 3 sets forth the composition of the Corporation’s loan portfolio. It has been the historical policy of the
Corporation to make the majority of its loan commitments in its market areas. The Corporation had no foreign loans in
its portfolio as of December 31, for all periods presented.

Summary of Loan Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands)

Table 3
Loans Outstanding as of December 31
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

COMMETCIAl ..oviiiieiceee e s $373,893 $307,523 $242.470  $189,343 $92,914
Residential —MOItage ......ccococvmvrerienieiieereeieesraeeane 319,033 264,730 233,887 238,016 307,577
Installment ..o e 199,862 201,419 173,578 164,297 191,937
Residential —Construction ..........ccceevvveeienivicvieicieecienens 18,196 16,093 11,072 8,578 12,667
Lease FInancing..........cceeveevieiiersinvenne e snereons 466 2,260 4819 9,319 11,974

Total LOAMS .coooviieeieieiccre e $911,450 $792,025 $665,826  $609,553 $617,069
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During 2004, gross loans increased by $119 million, or 15%, over 2003. This growth was focused in the
Corporation’s commercial ($66 million) and residential mortgage (354 million) loan portfolios, and is consistent with
management’s objectives for the year. During 2004, efforts were made to increase the percentage of loans in the
portfolio with adjustable interest rates. At year-end 2004, adjustable interest rate loans maturing within one to five
years were 38% of total loans, compared to 35% at year-end 2003.

Commercial loans.increased 21% in 2004, following a 27% increase in 2003. New commercial loans in 2004 are
attributable to focused efforts by the Corporation’s lenders to identify new customer opportunities, as well as to
expand existing customer relationships in all of its market areas, while maintaining existing standards of credit
worthiness. Additionally, most new commercial loans were priced on a variable rate basis, resetting monthly, and
were very popular with business borrowers. Commercial loans secured by real estate were 81% at the end of 2004,
compared to 85% in 2003.

Residential mortgage loans increased by $54 million or 20% in 2004 when compared to 2003. This follows a 13%
increase in 2003 over 2002. This increase is attributable to management’s continued emphasis on increasing its mortgage
loan portfolio in its key market areas, and through the use of adjustable-rate mortgage products that have been well
received by borrowers in these market areas.

Consumer installment loans in 2004 decreased by $1.5 million, or 1%, when compared to 2003. This decrease
reflects management’s shift toward more commercial and mortgage loans, and less emphasis on the highly competitive
.consumer loan market. Specifically, less focus was placed on generating new indirect auto loans during 2004. Indirect
auto loans comprise the largest percentage of installment loans, 78% at the end of 2004 and 76% at the end of 2003,

During 2003, grossiloans increased $126 million (19%) over 2002 to $792 million. Approximately two-thirds of
this loan growth was derived through the Corporation’s existing customer base, and the remaining one-third was
attributable to the Huntington branch acquisition. The key contributors to this strong loan growth in 2003 were
commercial ($65 million), residential-mortgage ($31 million) and installment ($28 million).

The commercial portfolio grew 27% in 2003, following a 28% increase in 2002. Approximately one-half of this
growth in 2003 resulted from the Huntington branch acquisition. The other one-half is primarily attributable to additional
business with existing customer relationships and a more aggressive pricing strategy, while maintaining strong credit
worthiness standards. .

Residential-mortgage loans grew 13% in 2003 after decreasing by 2% in 2002. Approximately one-third of the
growth in 2003 resulted from the Huntington branch acquisition. The remaining two-thirds is attributable to a combination
of an aggressive marketing campaign to solicit and retain existing mortgage customers, as well as offering a competitive
adjustable rate mortgage as an alternative to the fixed rates offered in the secondary market.

Consumer installment loans grew 16% in 2003 following a 6% increase in 2002. This increase relates primarily
to an increase in the indirect automobile loan portfolio, resulting from an expansion of the Corporation’s dealer
network within its market area and a more aggressive pricing strategy.

The following table sets forth remaining maturities, based upon contractual dates, for selected loan categories as
of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

Maturities of Loan Portfolio at December 31, 2004

Table 4 Maturing
Maturing After One Maturing
Within But Within After Five
One Year Five Years Years Teotal

COmMMETCIAL ...ooviiieiieei e sormaccesesanssesseasassrnes $173,080 $144,213 $ 56,600 $373,893
Residential—Mortgage ........ccoeereeencrivrncnnens 11,413 48,675 258,945 319,033
Installment ......c..ccooreveiveninen e 51,204 133,149 15,509 199,862
Residential—Construction ..........coeceveevvveninnne — 18,196 — 18,196
Lease Financing ................. STRRTTRUOURION 466 — — 466
Total Loans .....coccviiiiviiniicceneensceeneens $236,163 $344,233 $331,054 $911,450

Classified by Sensitivity to Change in Interest Rates

Fixed-Interest Rate LOans ........ooo..oooverevvvesroons $ 66,652 $171,842 $262,998 $501,492
Adjustable-Interest Rate Loans..........c.coccoeeuen. 169,511 172,391 68,056 409,958

Total Loans .......cccovveieinna e s $236,163 $344,233 $331,054 $911,450
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It is the policy of the Corporation to place a loan in non-accrual status, except for consumer loans, whenever there
is substantial doubt about the ability of a borrower to pay principal or interest on the outstanding credit. Management
considers such factors as payment history, the nature of the collateral securing the loan, and the overall economic
situation of the borrower when making a non-accrual decision. Management closely monitors non-accrual loans. A
non-accruing loan is restored to accrual status when principal and interest payments have been brought current, it
becomes well secured, or is in the process of collection and the prospects of future contractual payments are no longer
in doubt. Generally, consumer installment loans are not placed on non-accrual status, but are charged off after they are
120 days contractually past due. Table 5 sets forth the historical amounts of non-accrual loans (in thousands) for the
past five years:

Risk Elements of Loan Portfolio

Table 5 For the Years Endéd December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Non-Accrual Loans .........cccoueevveeerovieeeieeiseeoresees s $3,439 $2,774 $1,847 $3,196 $1,066
Accruing Loans Past Due 90 Days or More ...........c........ 1,105 1,236 1,458 1,230 1,448

Interest income not recognized as a result of placing loans on a non-accrual status was $.4 million during 2004 and
$.1 million during 2003 and 2002.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is based on management’s continuing evaluation of the quality of the loan and lease
portfolio, assessment of current economic conditions, diversification and size of the portfolio, adequacy of collateral,
past and anticipated loss experience, and the amount of non-performing loans and leases.

The Corporation utilizes the methodology outlined in FDIC Statement of Policy on Allowance for Loan and
Lease Losses. The starting point for this methodology is to segregate the loan portfolio into two pools, non-homogeneous
(1.e., commercial) and homogeneous (i.e., consumer) loans. Each loan pool is analyzed with general allowances and
specific allocations being made as appropriate. For general allowances, the previous eight quarters of loss activity are
used in the estimation of losses in the current portfolio. These historical loss amounts are modified by the following
qualitative factors: levels of and trends in delinquency and non-accruals; trends in volumes and terms of loans; effects
of changes in lending policies; experience, ability, and depth of management; national and local economic trends and
conditions; and concentrations of credit in the determination of the general allowance. The qualitative factors are
updated each quarter by information obtained from internal, regulatory, and governmental sources. Specific allocations
of the allowance for loan losses are made for those loans on the “Watchlist” in which the collateral value is less than
the outstanding loan balance with the allocation being the dollar difference between the two. The Watchlist represents
loans, identified and closely monitored by management, which possess certain qualities or characteristics that may
lead to collection and loss issues. Allocations are not made for loans that are cash secured, for the Small Business
Administration and Farm Service Agency guaranteed portion of loans, or for loans that are sufficiently collateralized.

The allowance for loan losses is based on estimates, and actual ultimate losses will vary from current estimates.
These estimates are reviewed quarterly, and as adjustments, either positive or negative, become necessary, a
corresponding increase or decrease is made in the provision for loan losses. The methodology used to determine the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is consistent with prior years.

The balance of the allowance for loan losses increased to $6.8 million at year end 2004, from $6.0 million at year
end 2003. Several factors contributed to the $.8 million increase in the balance of the allowance, including: an increase
in the total loan portfolio of $119 million during the year; a slight increase in net charge-offs as a percentage of
average loans to .20% in 2004 from .17% in 2003, caused primarily by a higher level of commercial loan charge-offs,
offset by reduced installment loan charge-offs; and a specific allocation of $.6 million related to three commercial
loans that are on non-accrual status, based on a thorough analysis of the related collateral securing these loans. The
balance of the allowance at the end of 2004 is equal to .75% of total loans, and is equal to four times net loan charge-
offs for the year. Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio using the factors and methodology outlined above,
management has concluded that the allowance for loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2004.

Although the balance of total loans increased $126 million in 2003, including $49 million associated with the
Huntington branch acquisition (with an adjustment to the allowance for these loans of $.3 million), the Corporation’s
overall net charge off experience relative to total average loans outstanding has declined to .17% in 2003 from .19% in
2002. Net charge offs relating to the installment loan portfolio represent approximately 92% and 95% of total net
charge offs for 2003 and 2002, respectively. Generally, installment loans are charged off after they are 120 days
contractually past due. The allowance allocated to the installment loan portfolio at December 31, 2003 remains more
than twice the current year’s net charge offs. Additionally, based upon its periodic reevaluation of the collateral for a
large commercial loan that was in non-accrual status, the Corporation determined that it was in a secure position relative
to the loan balance, resulting in a $.3 million specific allocation for that loan facility being removed from the allowance.

As aresult of management’s evaluation of the loan portfolio using the factors and methodology described above,
the allowance for loan losses was considered adequate at $6.0 million at December 31, 2003.
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Table 6 presents the activity in the allowance for loan losses by major loan category for the past five years.

Analysis of Activity in the Allowance for Loan Losses
: (Dollars in thousands)

Table 6 For the Years Ended December 31
; 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Balance at Beginning of Period ............cccovvvcvvvinennnn $ 5974 $ 6,068 $ 5752 $ 35,094 3 4,409
Loans Charged Off:
Commercial................ ettt et e a e b 808 17 197 347 49
Residential —MOrtgage ........ccocoivuverervenrerincrercrsnones 153 147 97 64 95
INStAllMENt ..o 1,244 1,556 1,535 2,223 1,688
Total Charged Off ..o 2,205 1,720 1,829 2,634 1,832
Recoveries of Loans:
Commercial .....ccoereernns Heererreaseerertees e beat e e eestorbaetenarn 22 50 229 21 10
Residential—Mortgage ..o 67 17 9 7 21
Installment ..o 422 425 401 338 288
Total RECOVETIES ..ciciiiiiieiiiiiianreireaceesesaeesanrsenans 511 492 639 366 319
Net Loans Charged Off .........cccoooovvivvinnrccniensensie e 1,694 1,228 1,190 2,268 1,513
Provision for Loan LOSSES .......ccccovevvvvcrvivmmveecreeere e 2,534 833 1,506 2,926 2,198
Huntington Branch Acquisition Loan Loss Reserve ...... — 301 — — —
Balance at the End of Period .................ccccoooevvinrnnn. $ 6,814 $ 5974 $ 6,068 § 5752 $§ 5,094
Loans at End of Period .....c...ccoeiiivvieericinieernicenn $911,450 $792,025 $665,826  $609,553  $617,069
Daily Average Balance of Loans ............c.coeccconnncnnnns $861,255 $727,532 $620,049  $619,088  $604,995
Allowance for Loan Losses
to Loans Outstanding .........c.ccovccecrencvrncnccmniencnnens 5% 5% 91% .94% .83%
Net Charge Offs to Average
Loans Outstanding .....c...ceervevevreeennieroniccsnirecenens 20% 17% 19% 37% 25%

Table 7 presents management’s allocation of the allowance for loan losses by major loan category in comparison
to that loan category’s percentage of total loans. Changes in the allocation over time reflect changes in the composition
of the loan portfolio risk profile and refinements to the methodology of determining the allowance. Specific allocations
in any particular category may be reallocated in the future as needed to reflect current conditions. Accordingly, the
entire allowance is considered available to absorb losses in any category.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses
(In thousands)

Table 7
December 31
% of Total % of Total % of Total
. 2004 Loans 2003 Loans 2002 Loans
COMMETCIAL c...vivveveeirviee ettt srn st eeaeenrees $3,050 41% $2,166 39%  $2,149 36%
Residential-Mortgage and Construction 1,454 37% 1,247 35% 1,032 37%
Installment ........cccoovvvievveceeiie e 2,246 22% 2,462 26% 2,675 26%
Lease Financing 15 — 52 — 105 1%
COMMILIMENTS 1.tivivieriareirienrideinrenrenseerseriesesracessereseosessresseases 49 — 47 — 33 —
Unallocated — — — — 74 —
TOALe.cvoneiceeeee e ettt e $6,814 100% $5,974 100%  $6,068 100%




Investment Securities

The Corporation’s entire security portfolio is categorized as available-for-sale. Investment securities classified as
available-for-sale are held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to changing market and interest
rate conditions or for liquidity purposes as part of the Corporation’s overall asset/liability management strategy. Available-
for-sale securities are carried at market value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as
a separate component of other comprehensive income included in shareholders’ equity, net of applicable income taxes.
The Corporation does not currently follow a strategy of making security purchases with a view of near-term resales and
therefore, does not own any securities classified as trading securities. For additional information, see Notes 1 and 3 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following sets forth the composition of the Corporation’s securities portfolio by major category as of the

indicated dates (in thousands):
December 31

As % As % As %
2004 of Total 2003 of Total 2002 of Total
Securities Available-for-Sale:

U.S. government and agencies ......c.cocerveneeereinrnencrenns $102,294 48%  $ 75,701 34% $ 12,364 6%
Mortgage-backed SECUTIHIES ......covvcirrmcrirreriicecnreenene 74,386 35% 89,082 40% 123,351 57%
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............ 22,461 11% 29,342 13% 31,354 14%
Corporate and other debt ..o, 11,520 6% 18,268 8% 23,153 11%
Other SECUTTHIES v ovivvieeiriiter v eresresrisesecresesaersesreaesanne — 11,222 5% 25,014 12%
TOLAL coovvciie ettt e $210,661 100%  $223,615 100% $215,236 100%

Total investment securities decreased by $13 million (6%) in 2004 compared to the year-end balance in 2003.
This decrease was due to the proceeds of maturing investment securities being utilized to fund the growth of the
Corporation’s loan portfolio. The composition of the investment portfolio changed during 2004, with almost half of
the portfolio as of year end being held in U.S. government and agency securities. This increase in U.S. government and
agency securities is directly related to the increase in the Corporation’s “Cash Management” product, an overnight
repurchase agreement program for business customers. The U.S. government and agency securities are held as collateral
for this product.

Total investment securities increased by $8 million in 2003 (4%) following an $85 million (65%) increase in
2002. The most significant shift in asset mix in 2003 was a $63 million increase in U.S. government and agencies
securities and a $34 million decrease in mortgage-backed securities. The Corporation sold a portion of its mortgage-
backed securities that were exhibiting accelerated payback due to the historically low mortgage interest rates and
reinvested the proceeds into fixed-term agency securities. Additionally, a portion of the $66 million received in
connection with the Huntington branch acquisition was also invested into agency securities.

The Corporation manages its investment portfolios utilizing policies which seek to achieve desired levels of
liquidity, manage interest rate sensitivity, meet earnings objectives, and provide required collateral support for deposit
activities and cash management overnight investment products. Excluding the U.S. Government sponsored agencies,
the Corporation had no concentration of investment securities from any single issues that exceeded 10% of
shareholders’ equity.

Table 8 sets forth the contractual or estimated maturities of the components of the Corporation’s securities portfolio
as of December 31, 2004 and the weighted average yields on a tax-equivalent basis.
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Investment Security Maturities, Yields, and Market Values at December 31, 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

Table 8
Over Over
1 Year S Years Over . Total
Within Thru 5 Thru 10 10 Market
1 Year Years Years Years Value
Securities Available-for-Sale:
U.S. government and agencies ...........o..c.o..n. § 20,954 § 81,340 $ — $ — $102,294
Mortgage-backed securities ..............ccoueuenne 6,094 67,234 1,058 o — 74,386
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions ........cccoevveririncnnran 1,369 1,670 4,184 15,238 22,461
Corporate and other debt .........ccooeviierrenaee. 2,422 — —_ 9,098 11,520
Total oo $ 30,839  $150,244 $ 5,242 $ 24,336 $210,661
Percentage of total .....oceceorveercrieneninineinns 14.64% 71.32% 2.49% 11.55% 100.00%
Weighted average yield* ........ccovvvivirinenns 4.02% 3.98% 6.47% 6.78% 4.37%

* Refer to notes to Table 1
Deposits
Table 9 sets forth the average deposit balances by major category for 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Average Deposit Balances
{Dollars in thousands)

Table 9 2004 2003 2002
Average Avg. Average Avg, Average . Avg,
Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield

Noninterest-bearing

demand deposits...........civeverveeveernnene. $ 94,871 — $ 75,840 — $ 65,284 —

Interest-bearing demand deposits............. 279,217 97% 213,420 .82% 146,313 1.14%

Savings deposits ........ce....... e 63,471 37 53,753 40 43,655 .62

Time deposits less than $100.................. 209,708 2.36 219,817 3.19 229,114 4,74

Time deposits $100 or more ........c........... 149,113 2.83 139,571 2.72 102,201 3.91

Total v $796,380 $702,401 $586,567

Total deposits increased $100 million in 2004, or 13% when compared to 2003. This compares to a $140 million
(23%) increase during 2003, On an average balance basis, total deposits increased $94 million (13%) in 2004 versus
2003, following a $116 million (20%) increase in 2003.

The increase in deposits in 2004 resulted from the Corporation’s purchase of brokered certificates of deposit in
excess of $100,000 to help fund its significant loan growth, as traditional deposit growth could not satisfy the demand.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, brokered certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 amounted to $146.0 million
and $50.0 million, respectively. On an average balance basis, all deposit categories increased when compared to 2003,
except for time deposits of less than $100,000.

Approximately 90% of the year-end 2003 balance increase and one-half of the 2003 average balance increase is
attributed to deposits the Corporation received as part of the Huntington branch acquisition. The remaining increase is
primarily attributed to the full year impact of a new interest-bearing demand deposit product which was introduced in
the spring of 2002 that offers customers liquidity as well as a competitive rate.

The following table sets forth the maturities of time deposits of $100,000 or more (in thousands):

Maturity of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
(Dollars in thousands)

Table 10
December 31, 2004
Maturities
3 Months or Less $ 23,559
3-6 Months .........co...... 18,992
6-12 Months 39,718
Over 1 Year 105,790

Total oo $ 188,059




Borrowed Funds
The following shows the composition of the Corporation’s borrowings at December 31 (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Federal funds purchased ..........ccocooeiveinninnicniee e $ — 3 5,800 $ 16,200
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 86,914 66,040 28,267

Short-term FHLB advances ..........cccevvveevvvreniiecncnnne 23,318 — —

Total short-term BOITOWINES .....c.ooceccrrereriie e e 110,232 71,840 44,467
Long-term FHLB advances........c..cccovceiiinccinnneimienescnc e 139,486 168,024 175,061
Junior subordinated debentures .......ccccveeevevvieriiieeiiieeeee e 35,929 23,711 23,711
Total 1ong-term DOITOWINES ....covvveveririirrieirierreriersenrc s ernieiereereseeenen 175,415 - 191,735 198,772
TOtal BOITOWINES ...vevvvrricrnrenireneinmerct et b st esnaeesnennan $ 285,647 $ 263,575 $ 243,239
Average balance (from Table [) ... $ 287,940 $ 245,990 $ 185,260

Total borrowings increased $22 million (8%) in 2004 compared to 2003, following a $20 million (8%) increase
over 2002. The average balance of total borrowings increased by $42 million (17%) in 2004 versus 2003, following a
$61 million (33%) increase in 2003 when compared to 2002, The preceeding table illustrates management’s use of
more short-term borrowings during the past two years, and less reliance on long-term borrowings, taking advantage of
the historically low interest rate environment during this time period. Management will continue to closely monitor
interest rates within the context of its overall asset-liability management process. See further discussion on this topic
in the “Interest Rate Senstivity” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation had additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB totaling $31.0 million
and an additional $15 million of unused lines of credit with various financial institutions. See Note 8 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further details about the Corporation’s borrowings and additional borrowing
capacity, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Capital Resources

The Bank and the Corporation are subject to risk-based capital regulations, which were adopted and monitored by
federal banking regulators. These guidelines are used to evaluate capital adequacy and are based on an institution’s
asset risk profile and off-balance sheet exposures, such as unused loan commitments and stand-by letters of credit. The
regulatory guidelines require that a portion of total capital be Tier I capital, consisting of common shareholders’ equity,
qualifying portion of trust issued preferred securities, and perpetual preferred stock, less goodwill and certain other
deductions. The remaining capital, or Tier II capital, consists of elements such as subordinated debt, mandatory
convertible debt, remaining portion of trust issued preferred securities, and grandfathered senior debt, plus the
allowance for loan losses, subject to certain limitations.

Under the risk-based capital regulations, banking organizations are required to maintain a minimum 8% (10% for
well capitalized banks) total risk-based capital ratio (total qualifying capital divided by risk-weighted assets), including
a Tier I ratio of 4% (6% for well capitalized banks). The risk-based capital rules have been further supplemented by a
leverage ratio, defined as Tier I capital divided by average assets, after certain adjustments. The minimum leverage ratio
is 3% (5% for well capitalized banks) for banking organizations that do not anticipate significant growth and have well-
diversified risk (including no undue interest rate risk exposure), excellent asset quality, high liquidity and good earnings.
Other banking organizations not in this category are expected to have ratios of at least 4-5%, depending on their
particular condition and growth plans. Higher capital ratios could be required if warranted by the particular circumstances
or risk profile of a given banking organization. In the current regulatory environment, banking organizations must stay
well capitalized in order to receive favorable regulatory treatment on acquisition and other expansion activities and
favorable risk-based deposit insurance assessments. The Corporation’s capital policy establishes guidelines meeting
these regulatory requirements, and takes into consideration current or anticipated risks as well as potential future
growth opportunities.

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s total risk-based capital ratio was 12.24%, which was well above the
regulatory minimum of 8%. The Corporation’s total risk-based capital ratio for year-end 2003 was 11.77%. The decrease
in 2003 was a direct result of the increase in assets and goodwill attributable to the Huntington branch acquisition, As
of December 31, 2004, the most recent notification from the regulators categorizes the Corporation as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional information regarding regulatory capital ratios.

Total shareholders’ equity increased $2.2 million to $86.4 million at December 31, 2004, from $84.2 million at
year-end 2003. The return on average equity (ROE) for 2004 declined to 8.91% from 13.10% for 2003. Return on
average equity (ROE) for 2002 was 12.75% . The decrease in ROE in 2004 is due to the decrease in net income in 2004
of $3.1 million when compared to 2003.
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Cash dividends of $.72 per share were paid during 2004, compared with $.70 and $.68 paid in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. This represents a dividend payout rate (cash dividends per share divided by net income per share) of
57.6%, 39.5%, and 42.8% for 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Liquidity

The Asset and Liability Management Committee of the Corporation seeks to assess and manage the risks associated
with fluctuating interest rates while maintaining adequate liquidity. This is accomplished by formulating and
implementing policies that take into account the sources and uses of funds, maturity and repricing distributions of
assets and liabilities, pricing strategies, and marketability of assets.

The objective of liquidity management is to maintain sufficient funds to satisfy the needs of depositors
and borrowers. The principal sources of asset liquidity are cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits
in banks, federal funds and investment securities available-for-sale that are not pledged. At December 31,
2004, such liquid assets totaled $64 million. While much more difficult o quantify, liability liquidity is enhanced
by a stable core deposit.base, access to credit lines at other financial institutions, and the Corporation’s ability
to renew maturing deposits. The Corporation’s ability to attract deposits and borrow funds depends primarily
on continued rate competitiveness, profitability, capitalization and overall financial condition.

When appropriate, the Corporation takes advantage of external sources of funds, such as advances from the
FHLB, lines of credit at other financial institutions and brokered funds. These external sources often provide
attractive interest rates and flexible maturity dates that better enable the Corporation to match funding dates and
pricing characteristics with contractual maturity dates and pricing parameters of earning assets. At December
31, 2004, the Corporation had available borrowing capacity of approximately $46 million through the FHLB and
other financial institutions.

The Corporation actively manages its liquidity position under the direction of the Asset and Liability
Management Committee of the Corporation. Monthly reviews by management and quarterly reviews by this
Board Committee under prescribed policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the Corporation will
maintain adequate levels of available funds. Management believes that the Corporation has adequate liquidity
available to respond to current and anticipated liquidity demands.

For information about the Corporation's borrowings, see Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference.

At the holding company level, the Corporation uses cash to pay dividends to shareholders and to service its junior
subordinated debt. The main sources of funding for the holding company include dividends from the Bank and access
to the capital markets. As discussed in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Bank is subject
to significant regulation and, among other things, may be limited in its ability to pay dividends or transfer funds to the
holding company. Accordingly, consolidated cash flows as presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
may not represent cash immediately available to the holding company. During 2004, the Bank declared and paid
dividends of $8.6 million. As of December 31, 2004, the amount of additional dividends that the Bank could have paid
to the holding company without regulatory approval was $11.2 million.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Corporation’s primary market risk is interest rate fluctuation. Interest rate sensitivity refers to the degree that
earnings will be impacted by changes in the prevailing level of interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches
in the repricing or maturity characteristics between interest-bearing assets and liabilities. Management seeks to minimize
fluctuating net interest margins, and to enhance consistent growth of net interest income through periods of changing
interest rates. The Corporation uses interest sensitivity gap analysis and simulation models to measure and manage
these risks. The interest rate sensitivity gap analysis assigns each interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability to
a time frame reflecting its next repricing or maturity date. The differences between total interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities at each time interval represent the interest sensitivity gap for that interval. A positive gap generally indicates
that rising interest rates during a given interval will increase net interest income, as more assets than liabilities will
reprice. A negative gap position would benefit the Corporation during a period of declining interest rates.

In order to manage interest sensitivity risk, management of the Corporation formulates guidelines regarding asset
generation and pricing, funding sources and pricing, and off-balance sheet commitments. These guidelines are based on
management’s outlook regarding future interest rate movements, the state of the regional and national economy, and
other financial and business risk factors. Management uses computer simulations to measure the effect on net interest
income of various interest rate scenarios. Key assumptions used in the computer simulations include cash flows and
maturities of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities, changes in asset volumes and pricing, and management’s
capital plans. This modeling reflects interest rate changes and the related impact on net interest income over specified
periods. Management has not historically used derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate sensitivity. At
December 31, 2004, the static gap analysis prepared by management indicated that the Corporation becomes liability
sensitive over the next year. In computing the effect on net interest income of changes in interest rates, management has
assumed that any changes would immediately affect earnings. Normally, when an organization is liability sensitive
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there is a negative impact to net interest income when interest rates increase. Based on the simulation analysis performed
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Corporation estimated the following changes in net interest income, assuming the
indicated rate changes:

(Dollars in thousands)

2004 2003
+200 basis point increase $ (592) $ 1,000
+100 basis point increase $ (146) $§ 600
-100 basis point decrease $ (1,657) $ (1,800)

This estimate is based on assumptions that may be affected by unforeseeable changes in the general interest rate
environment and any number of unforeseeable factors. Rates on different assets and liabilities within a single maturity
category adjust to changes in interest rates to varying degrees and over varying periods of time. The relationships
between prime rates and rates paid on purchased funds are not constant over time. Management can respond to current
or anticipated market conditions by lengthening or shortening the Corporation’s sensitivity through loan repricings or
changing its funding mix. The rate of growth in interest-free sources of funds will influence the level of interest-
sensitive funding sources. In addition, the absolute level of interest rates will affect the volume of earning assets and
funding sources. As a result of these limitations, the interest-sensitive gap is only one factor to be considered in estimating
the net interest margin.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The following table presents, as of December 31, 2004, significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations
to third parties by payment date and amounts and expected maturities of significant commitments. Commitments to
extend credit and letters of credit are legally binding, conditional agreements generally having fixed expiration or
termination dates. These commitments generally require customers to maintain certain credit standards and are
established based on management’s credit assessment of the customer. The commitments may expire without being
drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment does not necessarily represent future funding requirements. Further
discussion of the nature of certain obligations and commitments is included in the referenced Note in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Note Less than 1-3 3-5  More than
(in millions) Reference Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years
Long term debt.......coooiiiiiiiiiins 8

FHLB AdVances ......cccocecvvermeenerennenien 8§ 139.5 $ 220 3378 $ 115 $ 682

Junior subordinated debt ...................... 35.9 — — — 359
Operating 1eases .......ococcevevvceeerecree, 5 .8 3 4 1 —
Data processing and

telecommunications ....oococrvveercrieniiene 6.5 1.6 4.0 .9 —
Time Deposits ....ccoercieniinmerierinnnienne 7 380.4 168.7 181.0 294 1.2

Commitment Expiration by Period

Commitments Note Less than 1-3 3-5  More than
(in millions) Reference Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years
Loan COMMItMENLS ....o.oveveriereeererereerenens 4 31414 § 258 $11.4 $ 02 81040
Letters of credit ....c.cooovvceceeiincc e, 4 53 53 — — —

At December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s off-balance sheet arrangements were limited to loan commitments and
letters of credit discussed above.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information called for by this item is incorporated herein by reference to Item 7 of Part II, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Interest Rate Sensitivity.”

ltem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Direcfors and Shareholders
First United Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of First United
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements
of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31,2004, These financial statements are the responsibility of First United Corporation’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United Stateé). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of First United Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of First United Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December, 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report dated March 7, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Srmat ¥ MLLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 7, 2005

[26]




First United Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31

2004 2003
Assets
Cash and due from DANKS ......ccccovviiiiviieiieceie e s nea s ereesbessesbessesresbaeessenrens $ 24,159 $ 20,272
Interest-bearing deposits in DanKs ... e 1,855 1,474
Investment securities available-for-sale (at market value) ........ccocooevvivvinnininnrieierenreee 210,661 223,615
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK, @t COSE ..ovuvviiiiiminiiniiiieiioreemnecenrerietesesserecesensessecsenrssinsosssens 9,525 8,660
911,450 792,025
(6,814) (5,974)
Net loans .............. Heeeireeeeaastereeaareeareearearteaetee e tearearaeste e e te e barat e b e e e saeeRe et eereeeaeere e e benee e brereans 904,636 786,051
Premises and eqUIPIENt, IEL .........coiiiiiii et e e et et 23,523 16,598
Goodwill and other intangible aSSets, Nt .........cooiueiiiireiiiiceece e 15,149 15,707
Bank owned Life INSUTANCE ......covviviiiiiiiiiiieiieis it ecte e esresae e e reesene e e ast s bassaresentessanssressanees 23,420 20,495
Accrued interest receivable and OThEr @SSELS ......cvuvviivevrriirerieeeeirrsenreereerrr e srae e ese b eseeesreasaenes 18,949 15,369
TOTAL ASSELS .uviiieeiieieieieie et et ete et ebe e e e et s e e eteaeteeraa e e esbesbaes s aesbeebeeaaeenba st e enteanaeseebenneentaenent $1,231,877 $1,108,241
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing dePOSILS .....vcieirrrieirrieieer ettt esee e e s eene s b nranrea $ 114,734 $ 99,181
Interest-bearing deposits 735,927 650,980
TOLAl BEPOSIES ..ovveviviieiireiieietrete et ettt et et ettt r ettt s e bensese e ebens st ena s 850,661 750,161
ShoTt-1erm DOITOWINES ....ovevitiieiie ettt st ekttt baae s 110,232 71,840
Long-term DOTTOWIIES .....o.coiiiiiciii ettt et 175,415 191,735
Accrued interest and other Babilitie€s .........ccccceoiiiiiiiiicri et 8,086 9,220
Dividends payable .......ccoovvreireecinnnnen e bttt e e 1,127 1,094
TOtal LIADIIITIES ..viieviiiiiieiieeiieeritesite e rtee et e re et ebe e e e essteessssesaseesareeatseesesbeaasseesrneessneesrneanses 1,145,521 1,024,050
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock—no par value;
authorized and unissued 2,000 shares
Capital stock—par value $.01 per share;
authorized 25,000 shares, issued and outstanding .

6,093 in 2004 and 6,087 in 2003 .... 61 61
SUIPLUS Lottt ettt ebebe e e et et e e b et b e s e et b ebestete e mrebettesesser et e ben s st ne 20,453 20,324
Retained CaTMINGS ...c.ocooririririiei ettt e ettt eree e 65,405 62,201
Accumulated other COmMPrehensive INCOME ......ovvmiveeimrieceec et cenens 437 1,605

Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ...c.coovciereimierreieie et rceee e st s ae oo e enenees 86,356 84,191
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUItY ........ccoooi vt e e $1,231,877 $1,108,241

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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First United Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Interest income
Interest and fees 0N 10ANS .........c.ceciiiievi it v $ 53,264 $ 49,316 $ 48,982
Interest on investment securities:
TAXADIE .o 6,177 6,921 7,147
1,206 1,427 1,397
T 7,383 8,348 8,544
Interest on federal funds sOld ...........c.ooooveviiieici i 35 39 63
Total INtEIESt INCOME ..viiviriiriiriiniiieiceeeereere e eer e ot rreceersereatsersereasee s 60,682 57,703 57,589
Interest expense
Interest 0N dePOSILS ...overiiiiriiiiriirrer et et e 12,108 12,775 16,790
Interest on Short-term BOITOWINGS .......cooeeveviieriiieeeie v 1,153 447 289
Interest on long-term BOITOWINGS ....c.ooovvveeiiirciiiic e 10,755 10,379 8,623
Total INtETeSt EXPENSE ...cvoviiveriririeiereierieresieneerereererescsesasanssasesseseseseeseneens 24,016 23,601 25,702
INEt INLETESE IMCOIMI wvovvceveivreinietieieeee e eeeetreeaeeesbeeeresesseneabesaneessnsaresnens 36,666 34,102 31,887
Provision for loan losses 2,534 833 1,506
Net interest income after provision for loan 1losses ..........cccccovccoeinenan, 34,132 33,269 30,381
Other operating income |
Service charge INCOME .......cccoviireiiiricne e 4,749 3,895 3,432
Trust department INCOME ..........ociviririiriierereieiese et 3,153 2,520 2,146
Insurance Premium INCOIME ..c....cuiievreeerrrreeeerieieesereesiessassessessessessenacens 1,448 1,367 1,215
Security gains (I0SSES) «..cccveriiiirireiieeies e sescoaetr e s e e eseens 703 1,009 (366)
Bank owned 1ife INSUTANCE .......cocvvvieiiireiiieecesc vt 626 938 960
OthET INCOME .....viieii ittt ettt e e b eaeeeaeeneas 2,292 2,138 1,620
Total other OPerating INCOME ........c..o.vvvevveririeerierenr e e erneic e saeese e seeens 12,971 11,867 9,007
Other operating expense
Salaries and employee benefits ........oceceerievecerenereemnicronilon e 16,907 15,995 13,922
EqQuipment ......c.coooveiiinicivinnncennenen. et e e 2,952 2,426 2,090
Expenses related to early rédemption of long-term borrowings ............. 2,728 — —
OCCUPANICY . ettt et ettt e ee e 1,642 1,330 1,293
Data ProCeSSING ....cvcviiiiniiiiii et ee e e 1,380 1,217 1,160
OhET EXPEISES ..vvereerrericeienmiiaririene s sreees e sereebeserten et et saescsesnsrcseensnens 10,360 8,853 7,573
Total other Operating €XPEmNSE .......ccccovvierrierierienrenieesrsiesnersesersessensseees 35,969 29,821 26,038
Income before INCOME 1AXES ..vvivviiveiivieceeie e sre s b e 11,134 15,315 13,350
Applicable income taxes 3,507 4,566 3,695
NEL INCOIMIE ..eveeieeieiieee e fer et ear e ses et ese s b esnteess st as et sesessnsenras $ 7,627 $10,749 $ 9,655
Earnings per share ..ot $1.25 $1.77 $1.59
Weighted average commonl shares outstanding ..........cocecovvrvecriivniniiecnnn. 6,088,367 6,086,369 6,080,589

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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First United Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(In thousands, except per share amounts}

Accumulated
Other Total
Capital Retained Comprehensive ~ Shareholders’
Stock Surplus Earnings Income Equity
Balance at January 1, 2002 ......ocoereireeerea $ 61 $ 20,199 $ 50,254 $ 3562 $ 71,076
Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ......c..cccoecevncnneernennrcnan 9,655 9,655
Unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale,
net of income taxes of $1,951 ....cccocivniveirennnne, 2,718 2,718
Comprehensive iNCOME .......oovveeeeinveerreiereereenns 12,373
Cash dividends—$.685 per share ........cccovvevcricnne (4,166) (4,166)
Balance at December 31, 2002 ........ccccoviieeriincinenn 61 20,199 55,743 3,280 79,283
Comprehensive income: _
Net income for the year .........ccevevnecrernrcnccn e 10,749 10,749
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale,
net of income tax benefit 0f $904 ....................... (1,675) (1,675)
Comprehensive INCOME .....occeereervvrerervrisirressnnns 9,074
Issuance of 7,000 shares of common stock under
dividend reinvestment plan........coc.cveeriiveneirsiennns 125 125
Cash dividends—$.705 per share ........c.cccocorvcveenrerenennn. (4,291) (4,291)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ..o, 61 20,324 62,201 1,605 84,191
Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ........ccoecovviecinveverceneveenn e 7,627 7,627
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale,
net of income tax benefit of $286 ..........cccooene (1,168) (1,168)
Comprehensive INCOME ......covivevverieriiereicnririeeeens 6,459
Issuance of 6,000 shares of common stock under _
dividend reinvestment plan.........cc.oceveeerieriirininnns 129 129
Cash dividends—$.725 per share (4,423) (4,423)
Balance at December 31, 2004 ... vvvvirvveeevcieee $ 61 $ 20,453 $ 65,405 $ 437 3 86,356

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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“First United Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

t]
(In thousands) Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Operating activities
Net income ....coocvvivecvrreennens e bbbttt rsete et b et st n s s ens $ 7,627 $10,749 $9.655
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Provision for 10an 10SSES .....oovviciiiiniiiren e eseecneinsesaessaesssesnnes 2,534 833 1,506
Depreciation and amortization ..........c..coeceeeieceinenecnnccenenns 2,921 2,338 1,748
Net accretion and amortization of investment
security discounts and premiums .......cc.ooceeerervecrieireenneonnens 1,106 1,935 (995)
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities ...........ccocvevvveeeanen (703) (1,009) 366
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
And OthEr ASSELS ..ivociveirrieeni et (3,582) (3,560) 1,321
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest and other liabilities ... (1,102) 41 79
Increase in bank owned life insurance value .........cccevencenen (625) (938) (960)
Net cash provided by operating activities ..........cocccervnecvenrnenes 8,176 10,389 12,720
Investing activities
Net (increase) decrease in interest-bearing deposits in banks ........... (381) 4,733 5,041
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
available-for-sale ..o 127,250 167,130 51,021
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale ........ 14,008 98,615 18,508
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale ............c.occe.... (129,912) (277,588) (164,015)
Net increase in loans............ PP PR UU ORIV PIOPRUPPPRROR (121,118) (77,452) (57,463)
Net (increase) decrease in FHLB stock ... . (865) 498
Purchase of premises and equipment ..........c..occcoinenmmeccnrerninrernnenes (9,288) (4,200) (3,384)
" Investment in bank owned life INSULANCE .........ccovvevvvevcveerererienen, (2,300) — —
Net cash provided by acquisition ........cccoevivciricinericnionie e — 66,040 —
Net cash used in investing activities .......c.ccocviererrniieenniieninen (122,606) (22,224) (150,292)
Financing activities
Net increase in dePOSItS ......uiveieirririireciireeee et ens 100,500 8,799 33,091
Net increase in short-term bOTTOWINGS ...c..covvveerircieeeiercreenrencenneneces 38,392 16,240 27,335
Proceeds from long-term BOITOWINGS .....eccveevvreerirmvennrornieicenricee s 35,929 — 80,000
Payments on long-term borrowings ...... . (52,249) (7,037) (13,178)
Cash dividends paid............... v (4,384) (4,262) (4,136)
Proceeds from issuance of common Stock ...o.occeeiviinec i 129 125 —
Net cash provided by financifig activities .......c.ocvevererecrinreninnenienins 118,317 13,865 123,112
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..., 3,887 2,030 (14,460)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...........cc.ccoviiviennnn 20,272 18,242 32,702
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........coococvvvcercnnncnnenne $24,159 $20,272 $18,242
Supplemental information
INtErESt PAIA ...oovreierieeiieeeit ettt ettt b et $23,605 $24,641 $26,384
Income taxes paid ........c.ecc.nn et re et e e et e tear e s r e b e e b e nnt e ateaieens 6,262 5,218 3,305
Acquisition of a business:
Fair value of assets acquired:
LLOBNS ceriiie ittt et et s era e erearees $48,841
Premises and equipment :..........ccoeoeveecrinncneccenninnne 1,340
Goodwill and other identified intangibles 14,682
Fair value of liabilities assumed:
Demand deposit and savings accounts (79,611)
Certificates of deposits (51,292)
Net cash provided by acquisition ......c...ccoceervvccerinceernnennes $66,040

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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First United Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business

First United Corporation (“Corporation”) a registered financial holding company, incorporated under the laws of Maryland. It
is the parent company of First United Bank & Trust (“Bank™), First United Insurance Group, LLC (the “Insurance Group™), Oakfirst
Life Insurance Corporation, and OakFirst Loan Center, Inc., OakFirst Loan Center, LLC. First United Bank & Trust provides a
complete range of retail and commercial banking services to a customer base serviced by a network of 24 offices and 34 automated
teller machines. This customer base includes individuals, businesses and various governmental units. The Insurance Group is a full-
services insurance agency that succeeded to all of the business of Gonder Insurance Agency, Inc. when that entity was merged into
the Insurance Group on January 1, 2005, Qakfirst Life Insurance Corporation is a reinsurance company that reinsures credit life and
credit accident and health insurance written by American General Assurance Company on consumer loans made by First United
Bank & Trust. OakFirst Loan Center, Inc., and OakFirst Loan Center, LLC are finance companies. The Corporation and its subsidiaries
principally operate in four Western Maryland counties and four West Virginia counties.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States that requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
certain assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. For purposes of comparability, certain prior period amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the 2004 presentation.

Additionally, the Corporation also determines whether it should consolidate other entities or account for them on the equity method
of accounting depending on whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity of less than 100% of the voting interest of that entity
by considering the provisions of Accounting Research Bulletin 51 (ARB 51), “Consolidated Financial Statements”, or a controlling
financial interest in a variable interest entity (“VIE”) by considering the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consoli-
dation of Variable Interest Entities”, issued in January 2003, and FIN 46R issued in December 2003. The Corporation adopted the
provisions of FIN 46 during the fourth quarter of 2003, and FIN 46R in the first quarter 2004, Under FIN 46, a VIE is a corporation,
partnership, trust or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or
(b) has equity investors that does not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. Under FIN 46R, an entity
that holds a variable interest in a VIE is required to consolidate the VIE if the entity is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the
VIE’s activities, is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. ARB 51 is considered for entities in which the total
equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable the entity to finance itself independently and provides the equity holders with the obliga- |
tion to absorb losses, the right to receive residual returns and the right to make financial and operating decisions.

As discussed further in Note §, the Corporation has wholly owned trusts formed for the purpose of issuing securities which qualify
as regulatory capital and are considered VIE’s. These trusts are not consolidated, including the Corporation’s investment in First
United Capital Trust, a VIE formed in 1999, that was deconsolidated during the fourth quarter of 2003 based on the criteria established
in FIN 46. The Corporation’s investment in non-consolidated VIE’s are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation include the accounts of the Bank, Oakfirst Life Insurance Corporation,
OakFirst Loan Center, Inc., OakFirst Loan Center, LLC, and Gonder Insurance Agency. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Completed Business Combination

On July 25, 2003, the Corporation consummated, through the Bank, the acquisition of four banking offices and a commercial
banking center located in Berkeley County, West Virginia, from Huntington Bancshares Incorporated and its bank subsidiary, the
Huntington National Bank. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. As a result of the transac-
tion, approximately $131 million in deposits and $49 million in loans were purchased. Also, approximately $66 million in cash was
received. The acquisition resulted in recording $4.0 million of core deposit intangibles that will be amortized over 7.2 years. Addi-
tionally, the fair value adjustments required by the purchase method of accounting consisted of $1.1 million for deposits, which will
be amortized over an estimated 4 years, and $.5 million for loans, which will be amortized over an estimated 3 years. The resulting
goodwill arising from the transaction totaled $10.8 million, which is expected to be fully deductible for tax purposes. The acquisition
cost has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their fair values at the date of acquisition.

Investments

Securities available-for-sale: All security purchases have been classified as available-for-sale. Securities available-for-sale are
stated at fair market value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as a separate component of other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity.

The amortized cost of debt securities classified as available-for-sale is adjusted for amortization of premiums to the first cali
date, if applicable, or to maturity, and accretion of discounts to maturity, or in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the
estimated life of the security. Such amortization and accretion is included in interest income from investments. Interest and dividends
are included in interest income from investments. Realized gains and losses, and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary
are included in net securities gains (losses). Management systematically evaluates securities for other-than-temporary declines in
fair value. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method.
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Loans
Loans and leases that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or full repayment
by the borrower are reported at their outstanding balance.

Interest on Loans

Interest on loans and leases is recognized based upon the principal amount outstanding. It is the Corporation’s general
policy to discontinue the accrual of interest on loans (including impaired loans), except for consumer loans, when circumstances
indicate that collection of principal or interest is doubtful. After a loan is placed on non-accrual status, interest is not recognized.
Cash payments received are applied to the principal balances. Generally, consumer installment loans are not placed on non-
accrual status, but are charged off after they are 120 days contractually past due.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed by management to be sufficient to absorb estimated losses inherent
in the loan portfolio. Loans deemed uncollectible are charged against the allowance, while recoveries are credited to it. Management’s
determination of the adequacy of the loan loss reserve is based upon the impact of economic conditions on the borrower’s ability to
repay, past collection experience, the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, estimated fair value of underlying collateral for
collateral dependent loans, and such other factors which, in management’s judgement, deserve current recognition.

The Corporation utilizes the methodology outlined in FDIC Statement of Policy on Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses. The
starting point for this methodology is to segregate the loan portfolio into two pools, non-homogeneous (i.e. commercial) and
homogeneous (i.e. consumer) loans. Each loan pool is analyzed with general allowances and specific allocations being made as
appropriate. For general allowances, the previous eight quarters of loss activity are used in the estimation of losses in the current
portfolio. These historical loss amounts are modified by the following qualitative factors: levels of and trends in delinquency and
non-accruals; trends in volumes and terms of loans; effects of changes in lending policies, experience, ability, and depth of
management, national and local economic trends and conditions; and concentrations of credit in the determination of the general
allowance. The qualitative factors are updated each quarter by the gathering of information from internal, regulatory, and
governmental sources. Specific allocations are made for those loans on the Watchlist in which the collateral value is less than the
outstanding loan balance with the allocation being the dollar difference between the two. The Watchlist represents loans, identified
and closely monitored by management, which possess certain qualities or characteristics that may lead to collection and loss issues.
Allocations are not made for loans that are cash secured, for the Small Business Administration or Farm Service Agency guaranteed
portion of loans, or for loans that are sufficiently collateralized.

Trust Assets and Income

Assets held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Corporation and, accordingly, are not included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Income from the Bank’s Trust department represents fees charged
to customers and is recorded on an accrual basis.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation for financial
reporting has been made by using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 18
to 32 years for'buildings and 3 to 20 years for equipment. Accelerated depreciation methods are used for income tax purposes.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business
combinations. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, and SFAS No. 147, which applies specifically to branch purchases that qualify
as business combinations, goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to an annual impairment test.

Core deposit intangible assets represent the present value of future net income to be earned from acquired deposits and are
being amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated life of 7.2 years.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance (BOLI)

BOLI policies are recorded at their cash surrender value. Changes in the cash surrender value are recorded as other operating
income.

Income Taxes

The Corporation accounts for income taxes using the liability method. Under the liability method, the deferred tax liability
or asset is determined basedion the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities (temporary
differences) and is measured at the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when these differences reverse. Deferred tax expense is
determined by the change in the liability or asset for deferred taxes adjusted for changes in any deferred tax asset allowance.

Statement of Cash Flows
The Corporation has defined cash and cash equivalents as those amounts included in the balance sheet caption “Cash and
due from banks.”

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. The
Corporation does not have any common stock equivalents.
Business Segments

As defined by SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” the Corporation has two
operating segments, community banking and insurance. Because the operating activities of the insurance segment are immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements, no separate segment disclosures for insurance operations have been made.
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Variable Interest Entities

In January, 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“VIEs”), which
clarified the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements” to certain VIEs, commonly
referred to as special-purpose entities (SPEs), in which equity investors do no have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
from other parties. In December, 2003, the FASB reissued FIN 46 with certain modifications and clarifications.

1n 1999, the Corporation issued approximately $23.7 million in mandatorily redeemable junior subordinated debentures to First
United Capital Trust, a Delaware business trust (“Capital Trust”) the common shares of which were owned by the Corporation.
Capital Trust concurrently issued approximately $23.0 million in mandatorily redeemable preferred securities to third-party
investors. The Corporation’s investment in Capital Trust was considered a SPE. In accordance with the requirements of FIN 46 and
FIN 46R, in 2003 the Corporation reported $23.7 million of junior subordinated debentures in long-term borrowings and its $0.7
million equity interest in the Capital Trust as an “Other Asset.” On September 30, 2004, the Corporation exercised its option and
redeemed the $23.7 million of junior subordinated debentures, and at the same time Capital Trust redeemed the related preferred
securities, thereby dissolving the Trust.

In March 2004, the Corporation issued approximately $30.9 million of junior subordinated debentures to First United Statu-
tory Trust [ and II (FUST I and FUST II are collectively referred to as the “Trusts™). The Trusts, which are Connecticut Statutory
business trusts, all of the common securities of which are owned by the Corporation, are considered SPEs and issue mandatorily
redeemable preferred capital securities to third party investors (see Note 8). In accordance with FIN 46R, the Corporation reported
$30.9 million of junior subordinated debentures as long-term borrowings and its $0.9 million equity interest in the Trusts as “Other
Assets,” at December 31, 2004.

These debentures and preferred securities are discussed in detail in Note 8.

2. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines
and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Corporation and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as caleulated under regulatory accounting
practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier I capital to average assets (leverage).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2004, that the Corporation and the Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the most recent notification from the regulators categorize the Corporation and the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, total risk-based,
Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios must not fall below the percentage shown in the following table. Management is not aware

of any condition or event which has caused the well capitalized position to change. To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes  Action Provisions
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2004
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated ........ococecencrriencviinieneeneenae $112,584 12.24% $73,570 8.00%  $91,962 10.00%

First United Bank 97,531 10.70 72,910 8.00 91,137 10.00
Tier I Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated ......ccc.coovnnnes e e 99,410 10.81 36,785 4.00 55,177  6.00

First United Bank .......ocoovviiicencinncininnnn: 90,870 9.97 36,455 4.00 54,682  6.00
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets)

Consolidated .........cocvvvvevviiiieeesecee e 99,410 8.44 35,350 3.00 58,917 5.00

First United Bank ......cccoceeovncicnnnncncnnncennas 90,870 157 35,999 3.00 59,998  5.00
December 31, 2003
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated .......coocecvcerervieeeccercnncreee $96,809 11.77% $65,808 8.00%  $82,260 10.00%

First United Bank 83,658 10.26 65,247 8.00 81,559 10.00
Tier I Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Consolidated .......cccovrineneriiniiennecies 90,834 11.04 32,904 4.00 49,356  6.00

First United Bank 77,784 9.54 32,624 4.00 48,935  6.00
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets)

Consolidated ......c.oovrvvncc i 90,834 8.72 31,195 3.00 51,992 5.00

First United BanK .........ococcoeenvcicninnecrereccnnneens 77,784 7.53 31,005 3.00 51,675  5.00
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3. Investment Securities

The following is a comparison of amortized cost and market values of securities available-for-sale (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2004
U.S. government and 2ZENCIES ......c.ccevererirmrerererrcrereriecreenimessisineenss $102,790 $§ 101 $ 597  $102,294
Mortgage-backed securities 74,324 195 133 74,386
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 21,503 960 2 22,461
Corporate and other debt SECUTItIES .......coeeerrrcrvrrrcrrivrercrierienens 11,320 200 — 11,520
Total debt SECUTTLIES ..oveiiiiiiiveree e e re e raee e 209,937 1,456 732 210,661
Other SECUIIHES .vovvvviiiccieririreiniieii et cri e esnesc b s ecr e bonsins — — — —
TOUALS oot ettt et e at et et e b sa bbbt araenrnsern $209,937 $ 1,456 $ 732 $210,661
December 31, 2003
U.S. government and agencies $75,301 $ 526 $ 126 § 75,701
Mortgage-backed SECUNHES ........coveriimiiiiire i 89,066 330 314 89,082
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ..........cvevmivncan. 28,239 1,104 1 29,342
Corporate and other debt SECUTIIES ....covvveriiiecenrinciriniccninireiens 17,278 990 — 18,268
Total debt SECUTILIES ....cvvvveiiierieceere et cvreceee e e ereens e 209,884 2,950 441 212,393
OthEr SECUTILIES ...ccvviiieeiiiciieree et cre e erestr et eee e sveeerseeseebeenbeanse s 11,222 — — 11,222
TOtAlS oo verveiceierereenrerenn Jeeetenaarastantsas e anebesentas b seenteraeasanebesbetesbene $221,106 $2,950 $ 441 $223,615

Proceeds from sales and calls of securities available-for-sale and the realized gains and losses are as follows (in
thousands):

. 2004 2003 2002
PIOCEEAS 1ovivieiiiieie ettt ettt s bbb meen e aa e enenens $14,008 $98,675 $18,508
Realized aINS ...oooveiiicieni et 712 1,755 —
Realized LOSSES .ovvvvieveiiiiiris et eb e st €)] (746) (366)

The following shows the Corporation's securities available-for-sale with gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized position, at December
31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

December 31, 2004
Less than 12 months 12 months or more
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government and QZENCIES .....ccwiecrenveevreneieriinreronerenas £74,177 $(569) $2,021 $(28)
Mortgage-backed SECUTIIES ..........vveerrvenrrirenrrrseseriaseracesans 21,428 77 . 5,758 (56)
Obligations of states and political subdivisions .........c........ 866 2) — —
December 31, 2003
Less than 12 months 12 months or more
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government and agencies ........c.ovuverivmveemrerresesrnnenees $25,408 $(126) — —
Mortgage-backed securities 70,285 (314) — —
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 469 (1) — —

The Corporation does notbelieve any individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2004 represents an other-than-temporary
impairment. These unrealized losses on debt securities are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates. The Corporation has
both the intent and ability to hold the securities contained in the previous table for a time necessary to recover its amortized cost.

The Corporation recognized a realized loss on investment securities of $.4 million during the first quarter of 2003 and $.4

®
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million in 2002, related to an other-than-temporary impairment write-down of its investment in Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) preferred stock. This FHLMC preferred stock was ultimately sold during the second quarter of 2003.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale by contractual maturity at December 31, 2004, are
shown in the following table. Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Securities Available-for-Sale
(in thousands)

Amortized Market

Contractual Maturity Cost Value
DUE IN ONE YEAL OF 1888 .ueviviiiieiieireiit et sttt casbatses e s bbb ebes s b ebanas s sssnsaeas $ 24,806 $ 24,745
Due after one year through fIVe YEars ........ocoveiiiveint et ev e s 83,303 83,010
Due after five years through ten YEars .......cccocvviiriiirieiieieicerieice et 3,930 4,184
DUE FEEE EEII YEATS .....vovivevieiiiiiteteetistetsiesseteeseseseetess et ssasaesaeseaseresestestsaetsesesbesatsessranateresborossoressons 23,574 24,336
135,613 136,275
Mortgage-backed SECUITLIES .......ccoeiirercriiiirtiiit e iaee ettt et a et ess b bens s b esaetasereens 74,324 74,386
$ 209,937 $ 210,661

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, investment securities with a market value of $173 and $150 million, respectively, were
pledged to secure public and trust deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase as required or permitted by law.

4. Loans

The Corporation, through the bank, is active in originating loans to customers primarily in Western Maryland and West
Virginia. The following table is a summary of the loan portfolio by principal categories (in thousands):

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Loan Loan
Loans Commitments Loans Commitments
Commercial $373,893 $ 91,705 $307,523 $21,873
Residential—moTtgage ....co..ovveieecreveirciriserc s 319,033 36,456 264,730 32,663
INStAIMENTt ...ccviiiiiiiiieeee e 199,862 514 201,419 1,173
Residential—construction .......c.oocvvvevreveveeeeieeiieeee e 18,196 12,734 16,093 13,496
Lease fINancing .......cccvevvrveoreimnieioresensieseenrasesvesenesnens 466 — 2,260 —
Commercial letters of credit ..........oocoeeiveieiiiniiiiec e, — 5,336 — 1,239
$911,450 $146,745 $792,025 $70,444

Loan commitments are made to accommodate the financial needs of the Corporation’s customers. Letters of credit commit
the Corporation to make payments on behalf of customers when certain specified future events occur. Letters of credit are issued
to customers to support contractual obligations and to insure job performance. Historically, most letters of credit expire unfunded.
Loan commitments and letters of credit have credit risk essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers and
are subject to normal credit policies. Collateral is obtained based on management’s credit assessment of the customer.

In the ordinary course of business, executive officers and directors of the Corporation, including their families and companies
in which certain directors are principal owners, were loan customers of the Corporation. Pursuant to the Corporation’s policy,
such loans were made on the same terms, including collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
unrejated persons and do not involve more than the normatl risk of collectability. Changes in the dollar amount of ioans outstanding
to officers, directors and their associates were as follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Balance at JANUATY 1 ...ocoocoviioiiicciie et et er et e ea s ene e $ 16,794 $18,796 $17,601
Loans or advances.......... . 12,396 12,557 9,167
REDPAYITIENES ..ottt ettt s n e e sa e s ae e arems (13,184) (14,559) (7,972)
Balance at DeCemMDBET 31 .o.oviviiiieecicis et ettt renen $ 16,006 $16,794 $18,796




Activity in the allowance for loan loss is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Balance at January | $5,974 $6,068 $5,752
GroSs CTEAIL LOSSES ..vivviiriirenrritntirt et et ne et bebererebenes (2,205) (1,720) (1,829)
RECOVETIES .vvivvieeviciiece ittt et et e seeaae s eree s aeste e e e saearaessasasaassansseeseenans 511 492 639
NEt CTEAIt LOSSES .viiviiiiiinriteririeniteseeiesiecestssaretr e bes e e eresseesbensesbesbenssaseseeacessssneanes (1,694) (1,228) (1,190)
Provision fOr 10An LOSSES .........ccvvevvieiiieioiiite it es sttt ers b eee st snesae s 2,534 833 1,506
Huntington Branch acquisition 1oan 1088 1€8€Ive .........c.covcniicninivicinniiinne — 301 —
Balance at DECEIMBEr 31 ittt oot tetes e et e e ette s s en e esbssesiesaeaneeeean $6,814 $5,974 $6,068

Non-accruing loans :were $3.4, $2.8, and $1.8 million at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest income
not recognized as a result of placing loans on a non-accrual status was $.4 million during 2004 and $.1 million during 2003 and
2002.

Total impaired loans amounted to $.6 million and $.3 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Specific alloca-
tions of the allowance for loan losses for impaired loans were equal to these same amounts. There were no impaired loans or
specific allocations at December 31, 2002.

5. Premises and Equipmént
The composition of premises and equipment at December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003

LN ottt et e et e san e $ 8397 § 3,766
Premises .ooovveveviieeieeiin, bt eettr e heeestteenteeesiaeeeiteartetesaateeereaatstearnee e beeatts asreransee e aeastaeaernaseaataanann 13,489 11,603
Furniture and @QUIPIMENt .........cccciiiciiiinieiirreec e ete ettt ree bt a e eb et nre st et et besessennans 25,152 22,512
47,038 37,881

Less accumulated depreciation .ottt bt nmenes (23,515) (21,283)
TOMAL L. e bbb et be b es e rae s $23,523 $16,598

The Corporation recorded depreciation expense of $2.4, $2.1, and $1.8 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Pursuant to the terms of noncancelable operating lease agreements for banking and subsidiaries’ offices and for data processing
and telecommunications in-effect at December 31, 2004, future minimum rent commitments under these leases for each of the
next five years are as follows: $1.9, 2.2, 2.2, .5, and .5 million. The leases contain options to extend for periods from 1 to 5 years,
not included in the aforementioned amounts.

Total rent expense amounted to $.4 million in each of 2004, 2003 and 2002.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Corporation performed its annual impairment test as of December 31, 2004 and determined that goodwill was not
impaired. There can be no assurance that goodwill impairment will not occur in the future. The Corporation will continue to
evaluate goodwill on an annual basis for impairment and as events occur or circumstances change.

The significant components of goodwill and acquired intangible assets at December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Gross Net Average Gross Net Average
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Remaining Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying  Remaining
Amount Amortization Amount Life Amount  Amortization  Amount Life
GoodWill ..ooevveiiiiecinae ST $11,900 $§ — $11,900 $11,900 § — £11,900
Core deposit intangible assets ............. 4,040  (791) 3,249 5.8 4,040 (233) 3,807 6.8
Total oo $15,940 $(791) $15,149 $15,940  $(233) $15,707
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Amortization expense relating to the core deposit intangible asset acquired in 2003 was $.6 million in 2004 and $.2 million in
2003. Future estimated annual amortization expense is presented below (in thousands):

2005 i $558
2006 558
2007 i 558
2008 558
2009 ..o 558
2010, 459

7. Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000 was $188.0 and $117.5 million at
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively.

The following is a summary of the scheduled maturities of all time deposits as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

$168,675
127,418
53,581
16,968

8. Borrowed Funds
The following is a summary of short-term borrowings at December 31 with original maturities less than one year (dollars in
thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Federal funds purchased (weighted average interest rate
at December 31, 2003 (1.20%) and 2002 (1.51%) oo § — $ 5,800 $16,200
Short-term FHLB advance, interest rate of 2.6% maturing in March 2005 ............ 23,319 — —
2004 2003 2002
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Outstanding at end OF YEAT ...ovecviiieiiiiieee e $86,914 $66,040 $39,400
Weighted average interest at year end ........cocovecerrnnincnmrncee e 2.14% 1.03% 15%
Maximum amount outstanding as of any month end ..........cooveiincieinnn 91,209 $66,040 $39,400
Average amount outstanding .........cocoeoovoomirirnsecnin s, 78,352 49,278 32,259
Approximate weighted average rate during the year 1.44% .86% .87%

The following is a summary of long-term borrowings at December 31 with original maturities exceeding one year (dollars
in thousands):

2004 2003
FHLB advances, bearing interest at rates ranging
from 1.62% to 6.42% at December 31 ......ocoooiviiiiicce e $139,486 $168,024
Junior subordinated debt, bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.66% to 6.02%....... 35,929 23,711
$175,415 $191,735

In addition to the above, the Corporation has $11 million of letters of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta
(“FHLB”) at December 31, 2004. These letters of credit are pledged to secure public deposits.

The Corporation has a borrowing capacity agreement with the FHLB in an amount equal to 29% of the Bank’s assets, At
December 31, 2004, the available line of credit equaled $348 million. This line of credit, which can be used for both short or
long-term funding, can only be utilized to the extent of available collateral. The line is secured by certain qualified mortgage and
commercial loans and investment securities, as follows:

1-4 family MOrtgage 10aNS ....covvreveeveieirrecrisisrsiniesererensienninas $135,225
Commerical loans ................ 5,140
Investment securities 64,402

$204,767




The collateralized line of credit totaled $140 million at December 31, 2004, of which $31 million was available for additional
borrowings.

The Corporation also has various unsecured lines of credit totaling $15.0 million with various financial institutions to meet
daily liquidity requirements. As of December 31, 2004, the Corporation had no borrowings under these credit facilities.

Repurchase Agreements—The Corporation has retail repurchase agreements with customers within its local market areas.
Repurchase agreements generally have maturities of one to four days from the transaction date. These borrowings are collateralized
with securities owned by'the company and held in safekeeping at independent correspondent banks.

FHLB Advances—The FHLB advances consist of various borrowings with maturities generally ranging from 5 to 10 years
with initial fixed rate periods of one, two or three years. After the initial fixed rate period the FHLB has one or more options to
convert each advance to a LIBOR based, variable rate advance, but the Corporation may repay the advance in whole or in part,
without a penalty, if the FHLB exercises its option. At all other times, the Corporation's early repayment of any advance would be
subject to a prepayment penalty.

In December 2004, the Bank refinanced $21.5 million of long-term FHLB advances, resulting in an early redemption penalty
of $1.8 million (included in other expense). The borrowing was refinanced with a short-term FHLB advance that matures in March
2005.

The weighted average interest rate on all long-term FHLB advances was 4.14% at December 31, 2004.

Maturities of long-term FHLB advances over the next five years are as follows: 2005, $22.0 million; 2006, $7.0 million; 2007,
$30.8 million; 2009, $11.5 million; and $68.2 million thereafter.

Subordinated Debt—-In 1999, Capital Trust issued 9.375% preferred securities with an aggregate liquidation amount of
$23.0 million ($10 per preferred share) to third-party investors. The proceeds were used to purchase an equal amount of
9.375% junior subordinated debentures of the Corporation. An additional $.7 million of junior subordinated debentures was
purchased by Capital Trust from the proceeds of the sale of 100% of the Trust’s common securities to the Corporation. The
junior subordinated debentures represented the sole assets of Capital Trust, and payments under the junior subordinated
debentures were the sole source of cash flow for Capital Trust. The preferred securities qualified as regulatory Tier 1 capital
of the Corporation.

On September 30, 2004, the Corporation exercised its right to redeem the junior subordinated debentures at the same
time Capital Trust redeemed the preferred securities. In conjunction with this early redemption, the Corporation expensed
$.9 million of remaining unamortized issuance costs (included in other expenses) related to the junior subordinated
debentures. i

In March 2004, the Trusts issued preferred securities with an aggregate liquidation amount of $30.9 million to third-
party investors. The proceeds of issuance of the preferred securities were used to purchase an equal amount of junior
subordinated debentures of the Corporation, as follows:

$20.6 million—6.02% fixed rate for 5 years payable quarterly, converting to floating rate based on 3 month LIBOR
plus 275 basis points, maturing in 2034, redeemable five years after issuance at the Corporation’s option.

$10.3 million—floating rate payable quarterly based on 3 month LIBOR plus 275 basis points (4.66% at December 31,
2004) maturing in 2034, redeemable five years after issuance at the Corporation’s option.

The debentures represent the sole assets of the Trusts, and payments under the debentures are the only sources of cash
flow for the Trusts.

Additionally, in December 2004, the Corporation issued $5.0 million of debentures. The debentures have a fixed rate of
5.88% for the first five years, payable quarterly, which converts to a floating rate based on three month LIBOR plus 185 basis
points. The debentures mature in 2014, but are redeemable five years after issuance at the Corporation’s option.

The Corporation has the right to defer interest on the debentures for up to 20 quarterly periods, in which case distributions
on the preferred securities will also be deferred. Should this occur, the Corporation may not pay dividends or distributions
on, or repurchase, redeem or acquire any shares of its common stock.

9. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Taxes currently payable ... $5,324 $6,060 $3,233
Deferred taxes (BENefit) ........cocecrvineioioniiieirerr et e (1,817) (1,494) 462
Income tax expense fOr the VEAT ... sinercntseseaseseseeseeesesesesensssens $3,507 $4,566 $3,695

The reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and effective income tax rate is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Federal statutory rate .........ccoccoveincreincinnnines 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Tax-exempt income on securities and loans 4.1) (3.6) (4.2)
Tax-eXempt BOLI INCOME ......ovvvvovcreiercesseeesesssernsesnsss s cssensessssnsssssrensens (2.0) 2.1 (2.5)
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit ........c.ooviiiiniinn 4.4 6 (.8)
OBRET 1ottt ettt bttt b et bttt st seaane s it (1.8) @) 2

31.5% 29.8% 27.7%




Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the
Corporation’s temporary differences as of December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
ANOWANCE FOr TOAM LOSSES ..ivviveitieirieeicee ettt eet e eee et st eet e sttt seee e s ae e eensaeeteeerannes $2,695 $2,363
Deferred COmMPENSAtioN ......o.eveeevrvrvcerennrnecerins 506 544
‘State tax loss carry forwards 575 323
ORET et e e bbb e e b b beae s b s st aae et e et et ea s b et b e b eneats 185 94
Total deferred taX @SSELS ..cc.iviiiiviiiiieeie ettt et sb bbb ess e s ss s sss s ennssnssan 3,961 3,324
Valuation QIIOWANCE .....c..cceciiviiiniiieeiieeice ettt ettt s et es ettt es et as b aseetensebarens (575) (321)
Total deferred tax assets less valuation alloWaNCe ...........ceevvvivvieviiricrieies e 3,386 3,003
Deferred tax liabilities:
Dividend from real estate INVEStMENT TrUSE ......oviveviieivinrrinece e et eenns — (1,650)
DIEPIECIALION ..ttt ettt ettt et s aes bbb s s b b e abebe b b e ses s ensessaenns (1,450) (1,121)
Unrealized gain on investment securities available-for-sale (287) (992)
PENSION 1uvveiicieiicr ittt (1,110) (874)
AULO 188SING ...evcvecreriiecrccer e (186) (650)
ORI oot seeoer e ese s st e st e s et s st eessessers oo (404) (291)
Total deferred tax Habilities ......c.cooveerieniiiiic et e (3,437) (5,578)
Net deferred tax Habilities .......veeiiiiriiiieiiccec et 8 sh $(2,575)

State income tax expense (benefit) amounted to $.8, 3.2 and $(.2) during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The state loss
carry forwards included in deferred tax assets will expire commencing in 2019.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (Pian) covering substantially all full-time employees
who qualify as to age and length of service. The benefits are based on years of service and the employees’ compensation during
the last five years of employment. The Corporation’s funding policy is to make annual contributions in amounts sufficient to
meet the current year’s funding requirements.

The benefit obligation activity was calculated using an actuarial measurement date of January 1. Plan assets were calculated
using an actuarial measurement date of December 31. The following table summarizes benefit obligation and funded status,
plan asset activity, components of net pension cost, and weighted average assumptions for the Corporation’s pension plan (in
thousands):

2004 2003
Change in Benefit Obligation
Obligation at the beginning of the year $14,724 $13,124
Service cost 718 571
Interest cost 938 840
Assumptions 245 1,225
Actuarial (BAINS) J0SSES ....ovevruiriiiiiceieieeesieie ettt se ettt eartenes 528 (645)
BENETIS PAIA ..ottt ettt ea s ettt bt et ee (435) (391)
Obligation at the end 0F the YEar ......ccocviiiiiecc e et sae e $16,718 $14,724
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value at the beginning of the YEar ... 13,726 11,151
Actual TetUIT ON PIAN ASSEES 1.veiviviriiiiieiiieriee i eiriestr e eresiebasaen estasbesessbaareses steessrbensssaearorsessen 725 2,157
Employer contribUtion ... e 418 809
Benefits PAIA ..oceeeiiie e et bt sa et eren (435) (391)
Fair value at the end 0f the YEar ..ot bt erer e 14,434 13,726
Funded STaths ..o bt e s e (2,285) (998)
Unrecognized net ACtUATIAL L0SS ..vvvevvviieiiririievceiitieescvtcvvetectrivbetver et cevseissveesseressresversarssesessess 4,566 3,486
Unrecognized prior service cost......... 152 162
Unrecognized net transition asset 410) (449)
Prepaid Benefit Cost ... e st e b esren $ 2,023 § 2,201




2004 2003

Components of Net Pension Cost

Service Cost v, et Yot e oo e et e e b ar oAt etst et e b e bt et et e ba s e st obabesa e s erseseatsaetentaraan $ 718 $ 571
Interest Cost ....vevenrennen SO OOO OO TO TSP U SUORRPR OO TOPTPOT 938 840
Expected return on assets ...... (1,183) (1,005)
AmOrtization Of tranSItION ASSEL ....cvviiviieeierirrerteristeeresrecene e e saereeserassesrereseasesbesessesessansasesen (39) (39
RecOBNIZEA 10SS 1ottt ea e 151 136
Prior service cost 10 10
Net pension expense included in employee benefits . $ 595 § 513
Weighted Average Assumptions

Discount rate for benefit obligations . 6.15% 6.25%
Discount rate for net pension cost.......... 6.25 6.75
Expected long-term return on assets 8.25 8.25
Rate 0f COMPENSAtION INCIEASE .....cevviviieiriinicrie ettt s e bt asesbet e srassebasasassaeaas 4.00 4.00

The accumulated benefit obligation was $13.5 and $11.7 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The asset allocations for the defined benefit pension plan as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, by asset category, are as

follows:
Percentage of

Plan Assets
2004 2003
Asset Category
EQUILY SECUTIHES 1uuvvvriviererimiieneniesrmmiensonnecannesiasssesnsaresenssesesessiesesesassessssssscssssssnsssasssonass 64% 60%
Debt securities 23 32
Cash and cash equiva 13 8
Total .o bbb e bR e b s e s bR bbb R et sn Rt ne e n s 100% 100%

The investment objective for the defined benefit pension plan is to maximize total return with tolerance for average risk.
Asset allocation favors equities, with a target allocation of approximately 55% equities securities, 40% fixed income securities,
and 5% cash. Due to volatility in the market, the target allocation is not always desirable and asset allocations will fluctuate
between the acceptable ranges. A core equity position of large cap stocks will be maintained. However, more aggressive or
volatile sectors will be meaningfully represented in the asset mix in pursuit of higher returns. Higher volatility investment
strategies such as credit risk, structured finance, and international bonds will be appropriate strategies in conjunction with the
core position.

It is management’s intent to give the investment managers flexibility within the overall guidelines with respect to investment
decisions and their timing. However, certain investments require specific review and approval by management. Management is
also informed of anticipatedichanges in nonproprietary investment managers, significant modifications of any previously approved
investment, or anticipated use of derivatives to execute investment strategies.

The expected long-term rate of return on Plan assets has been established by considering historical and future expected
returns of the asset classes invested in by the Plan trustees, and the allocation strategy currently in place among those classes,

The following summarizes the number of Corporation shares and the fair value of such shares included that are in Plan
assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003, as well as dividends paid to the Plan for such years (dollars in thousands):

2004 2003
Number of Shares BEld ........cccoovviieiiiiecee ettt ba et st ere s 14,905 49,084
Number of shares purchased ..., — 504
Number of Shares SOIA ....c.viviiiieccrc e e r e v s e b tr e b e b b r e sae b e 34,179 503
FIT VAIUE oo e cv e rae v e s b erte e e b e s e b e R et s be R e b e reeasereane et eanees $ 348 $ 1,196
Dividends paid ... $ 33 s 34
Percentage of total Plan aSSeLS ... sen ettt nisen s 2.4% 9%
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Estimated Cash Flows related to the Plan are as follows (in thousands):
Estimated future benefit payments:

2005 ..t $ 487
2006 ..o 492
2007 o 522
2008 ... 552
2009 ... it s 653
2010-2014 .corriic s 5,289

$ 7,995

The Corporation estimates that it will contribute $.7 million to the plan in 2005.

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan

The First United Bank & Trust 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (“the 401(k) Plan™) is a defined contribution plan that is intended
to qualify under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all employees of the Corporation.
Eligible employees can elect to contribute to the plan through payroll deductions. Contributions up to 6% of an employee’s base
salary are matched on a 50% basis by the Corporation. Expense charged to operations for the 401(k) Plan was $.4, $.3, and $.2
million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

During 2001, the Corporation established an unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) to provide senior
management personnel with supplemental retirement benefits in excess of limits imposed on qualified plans by federal tax law,
Concurrent with the establishment of the SERP, the Corporation acquired bank owned life insurance (BOLI) policies on the
senior management personnel and officers of the Corporation. The benefits resulting from the favorable tax treatment accorded
the earnings on the BOLI are intended to provide a source of funds for the future payment of the SERP benefits as well as other
employee benefit costs. The SERP expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $.4, $.4 and $.2 million, respectively.

11. Federal Reserve Requirements
The Bank is required to maintain cash reserves with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond based principally on the type
and amount of its deposits. During 2004, the daily average amount of these required reserves was approximately $11.0 million.

12. Restrictions on Subsidiary Dividends, Loans or Advances

Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances made by the Bank
1o the Corporation, The total amount of dividends that may be paid at any date is generally limited to the retained earnings of the
Bank, and loans or advances are limited to 10 percent of the Bank’s capital stock and surplus on a secured basis. In addition,
dividends paid by the Bank to the Corporation would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bank’s capital to be
reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements. At December 31, 2004, the Bank could have paid additional dividends
of $11.3 million to the Corporation without regulatory approval.

13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are at times, and in the ordinary course of business, subject to legal actions. However,
to the knowledge of management, the Corporation is not currently subject to any such legal actions.

Loan and letter of credit commitments are discussed in Note 4.

Oakfirst Life Insurance Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, had $9.0 million of life, accident and
health insurance in force at December 31, 2004. In accordance with state insurance laws, this subsidiary is capitalized at $4.3
million.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As required by SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” presented in the following table is
fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the statement of financial condition, for which it
is practicable to estimate that value. Fair value is best determined by values quoted through active trading markets. Active trading
markets are characterized by numerous transactions of similar financial instruments between willing buyers and willing sellers.
Because no active trading market exists for various types of financial instruments, many of the fair values disclosed were derived
using present value discounted cash flow or other valuation techniques. As a result, the Corporation’s ability to actually realize
these derived values cannot be assumed.

The fair values disclosed under SFAS No. 107 may vary significantly between institutions based on the estimates and
assumptions used in the various valuation methodologies. SFAS No. 107 excludes disclosure of non financial assets such as
buildings as well as certain financial instruments such as leases. Accordingly, the aggregate fair values presented do not represent
the underlying value of the Corporation.
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The actual carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments that are included in the
statement of financial condition at December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .........ococeonnverinreenens $ 24,159 $ 24,159 $ 20,272 $ 20,272
Interest-bearing deposits in banks ..................... 1,855 1,855 1,474 1,474
Investment SECUrIties (ovvviveiiie i 210,661 210,661 223,615 223,615
Federal Home Loan Bank stock.........cccoeueenn.ne. 9,525 9,525 8,660 8,660
Bank Owned Life Insurance ..........coceververmrenne 23,420 23,420 20,494 20,494
Loans ....ccoceeevienennne ettt ar e 904,635 900,647 792,025 791,310
Accrued interest receivable ........c.ocoeviviererinienee 5,200 5,200 5,268 5,268
Financial Liabilities:
DEPOSILS .oovvivereiiivieriee et 850,661 790,555 750,161 753,753
Borrowed funds ........coooivviiieee 285,647 286,292 263,575 268,337
Accrued interest payable .........ccccvviiiirieninne 3,187 3,187 2,776 2,776

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial
instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial condition for cash and due from
banks and federal funds sold approximate their fair values.

Interest-bearing deposits in banks: The carrying amount of interest-bearing deposits approximate their fair values.

Investment securities: Fair values of investment securities are based on quoted market values.

Federal home loan bank stock: The carrying value of Federal Home Loan stock approximates fair value based on the
redemption provisions of the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Loans: For variable rate loans and leases that reprice frequently or “in one year or less,” and with no significant change in
credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for fixed rate loans and leases and loans and leases that do not
reprice frequently are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies current interest rates being offered on the
various loan products.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: The carrying amount of Bank Owned Life Insurance approximates its fair value.

Deposits: The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, savings, and certain types
of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying
amounts). The carrying amounts for variable rate certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair
values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates
currently being offered on the various certificates of deposit to the cash flow stream.

Borrowed funds: The fair value of the Corporation’s Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings and junior subordinated debt is
calculated based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows, using rates currently existing for borrowings with similar
remaining maturities. The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase
approximate their fair values.

Accrued Interest: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and payable approximates their fair values.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments: In the normal course of business, the Corporation makes commitments to extend
credit and issues standby letters of credit. The Corporation expects most of these commitments to expire without being drawn
upon, therefore the commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Due to the uncertainty of cash
flows and difficulty in the predicting the timing of such cash flows, fair values were not estimated for these instruments. The
Corporation does not have any derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2004 or 2003.
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15. Parent Company Financial Information (Parent Company Only)

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition (in thousands)

December 31,

2004 2003

Assets

SN 1 ettt £ 1At aen s e b e R b ns sa et e oA e e eh e beatea st aneaeseeass $ 1,406 $ 966
INVESHTIEIIE SECULTEIES ... ivveievieereseaereriereieaerraresiesserrassissesbeneersisteneassessereasessseseessesssssensessessensassersone 1,268 1,537
Investment in bank SUDSIAIATY .....c.vcviiiiiriit e s 106,052 94,735
Other assets ......ooeevvcreviveveecnenen, 5,583 4,753
Investment in non-bank subsidiaries 9,851 7,854
TOtAL ASSELS ovoveiviiiesiieieeeies e etet e s e e etese e teebeetesrasbest et et estes s e beseasreab ot et enteseetes s eantantereeaeatssnsanan $124,160 $109,845
Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity

Accrued interest and other HabIlItIES ..ovvveovveeeiiieiiecieeeisee ettt sese et ee et servsesnens $ 1,082 $ 850
Dividends PAYADIE ... ..ccoiviiieriiec ettt et et be st er s 1,127 1,093
Junior subordinated debt .....cooviiriee e b 35,929 23,711
Shareholders” EQUILY ......ccoverviviioiiicriieci ittt et con s enbencien 86,022 84,191
Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s EQUItY .......cccoivieiiiiiieniis oo $124,160 $109,845

Condensed Statements of Income (in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Income:
Dividend income from bank SUbSIGIATY .........cooveeimireiiierieiice e e $ 8,718 $ 6,786 $ 6,670
OthEr INCOITIE ...ttt bttt cae bt es et ans e 422 84 86
TOAL INCOME ....t.veveveei ittt eecea st et raac e o beans e b betcba et ebeb e et st saecanesbases $ 9,140 6,870 6,756
Expenses:
INTETESE EXPENSE oottt ettt ettt sae st rer e e eres st e 2,927 2,192 2,192
OLhET EXPEISES ....eivviieririreieriirercnre e re st seae e ae bt st res b s s ebeseease e 942 127 4
TOtAl EXPENSES ...veeierireeeteieiei ettt e bbbt sttt b 3,869 2,319 2,196
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed

net income Of SUBSIAIATIES .....ovecee ittt ees 5,271 4,551 4,560
Income tax DENETIt ..ocvviiviioiiice et e 1,205 795 741
Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries:

BAIK .ovieciceciieiieies et sttt e b et s e ettt ne b s reb e en 1,080 5,118 4,243

NODDANK .ttt e eb s er e 71 285 111
NEtINCOIME ..ottt et es s sb s aa b st an s esssasene $ 7,627 $10,749 $ 9,655
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Operating activities
INEE ITICOINIE 1ovevivriieresieeetete st enesrestenestosseeessobesaesestetaesnsstasessansatestsmsesssssetessssssaesssserens $ 7,627 $10,749 $9,655
Adjustments to reconcilenet income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed net income of subSidiaries .........cccovvecrcrnnmccerneniennnncn (1,151 (5.403) 4,354)
Increase in Other ASSELS ..iiuimiiiirceiiiieiitceet ettt eees et (830) (1,615) (678)
Decrease (increase) in acgrued interest and other liabilities .........cc.ccoevvvvrcencirinnnn 232 822 (16)
Increase in dividends payable ... 34 31 43

Net cash provided by operating activities ..........cccerrvecrrrereremeccrnercreieneesrcnens 5,912 4,584 4,650

Investing activities

Proceeds from investment MAturities ......ccc.ovviinriienineiinccne e 269 — 246

Net investment in subsidiaries (1,401) (636) (732)
Capital transfer t0 BANK ........cco.oiveieereriieeseevsesesissersesseaesesesssssessassssessessessanns (12,000) — —

Net cash used in iNVESHNE ACHIVITIES ...oovcvrrereriveieiiee et ereeene s (13,132) (636) (486)
Financing activities

Cash diVIAENAS «..ovvvee e e e (4,433) (4,262) (4,166)
Proceeds from issuance of COMMON StOCK ....uvurvrereeiireiriseneeisiseiscosierenisseesseans (125) 125 —

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt .........c.oceoiviniiiiinii i, 12,218 — —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..........ccevevcrvrnnvccnnneeiionnes 7,660 4,137) (4,166)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccocvrvninniciiicccn 440 (189) 2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Of YEAT ......ccovvireiirrreii s e eeacasnseeeanss 966 1,155 1,157

Cash and cash equivalentsiat end of year................... e et ettt $1,406 $ 966 $1,155

16. Quarterly Results of Qperations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 (in thousands):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2004

INLEIESt INCOMIE ....eoviiveiieiecee ettt ete e e eae e e $14,601 $14,853 $15,160 $16,067
Interest expense ........coeueee. et e errhrraaeeeirteeser e teaeiraare sraeesraaan 5,493 5,856 6,348 6,319
Net interest income ....... ...................................................... 9,108 8,997 8,812 9,748
Provision for possible 10anilosses ........cccocmciiieniiiinicoeieneee 45 739 851 899
OhEr INCOMME .....viovviteitiiiesiere e cvsetn v ee e eresveess s ereeseeresreans 2,767 2,977 2,800 3,724
Gains (l0SSES) ON SECUTILIES tvevvvviveiiiieirnireierareer et saenese s 674 27 2 —
Other EXPENSES ...viveiiireciiri ettt ee e n et s naseas 8,396 8,233 8,185 8,426

Expenses related to early redemption of
long-term BOITOWINES ....veccveivieerrerreecerreceer e — — 910 1,818
Income before INCOME taXES ...c..coviiivinriciieieceeecerrreensessieeeees 4,108 3,029 1,668 2,329
Applicable INCOME taXES......cceririirriririiinicrrteccrnees 1,396 1,032 573 506
Net iNCOMe ..vveeererreenn, e et e $ 2,712 S 1,997 $ 1,095 $ 1,823
Earnings per share et eesres et sie et $ 45§ .33 $ .18 $ .29




First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2003
INEErESt INMCOME . vocvvivieieiciceece et $14.240 $14,471 $14,534 $14,458
Interest expense 6,146 5,850 5,919 5,686
“"Net interest income ...... 8,094 8,621 8,615 8,772
Provision for possible 10an 108$€s ......coovevirirvincnecrecninenee 656 317 357 137
Other INCOME ......ocviiiiriieer et et et er st 3,071 2,509 2,786 3,501
OhET EXPEISES wvevirirreririe e crereiee st sraeeer et reeess e saaeene 7,110 6,801 7,992 7,918
Income before income taxes 3,399 4,646 3,052 4,218
Applicable income taxes 947 1,325 872 1,422
""Net income ... $ 2452 § 3321 $ 2,180 $ 2,796
Eamings pershare s $ 40 $ 54 $ 36 $ 46

tem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Iltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Corporation maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the Corporation’s reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with the
SEC, such as this annual report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in those rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Corporation’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“*CEO”) and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), as
appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error
or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of
two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, control may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

An evaluation of the effectiveness of these disclosure controls as of December 31, 2004 was carried out
under the supervision and with the participation of the Corporation’s management, including the CEO and the
CFO. Based on that evaluation, the Corporation’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, has concluded
that the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, there was no change in the Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting.

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management has performed an evaluation
and testing of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. Management’s
report on the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting, and the related attestation report of the
registered public accounting firm, are included on the following pages.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
First United Corporation

The Corporation’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. This internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to management and the
Board of Directors as to the reliability of the Corporation’s financial reporting and the preparation and presentation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, as well as to safeguard assets from unauthorized use or disposition.

An internal control system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation and may not prevent or detect misstatements in the financial statements or the unauthorized use or
disposition of the Corporation’s assets. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness of internal controls to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2004, based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment and on the foregoing criteria,
management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting
is effective.

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Corporation for the three years ended December 31, 2004, appearing elsewhere in this annual
report, and has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, as stated in their report, which is included herein.

V2
William B. Grant Robert W. Kurtz

Chairman of the Board and, President and,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
First United Corporation

We have audited the management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that First United Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). First United Corporation’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includeés those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies of procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that First United Corporation maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also,
in our opinion, First United Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated statements of financial condition of First United Corporation as of December 31, 2604 and 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, of First United Corporation and our report dated March 7, 2005, expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanet ¢ MLL?

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 7, 2005
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART lll

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
For a listing of the Corporation’s executive officers, see Executive Officers in the annual Proxy Statement.

The Corporationthas adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to its principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer, or controller, or persons performing similar functions, a Code of Ethics
applicable to all employees, and a Code of Ethics applicable to members of the Board of Directors. Copies of the
Corporation's Codes of Ethics are available free of charge upon request to Mr. Robert W. Kurtz, Secretary, First
United Corporation, ¢/o First United Bank & Trust, P.O. Box 9, Qakland, MD 21550-0009.

All other information required by this item is incorporated by reference herein to the Corporation's definitive
Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC in March of 2005 pursuant
to Regulation 14A.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information ‘«‘required by this item is incorporated by reference herein to the Corporation's definitive

Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC in March of 2005 pursuant
to Regulation 14A.

Item 12. SECURITY/OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference herein to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC in March of 2005 pursuant to
Regulation 14A.

item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference herein to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC in March of 2005 pursuant to
Regulation 14A.

item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference herein to the Corporation’s definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2005 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC in March of 2005 pursuant to
Regulation 14A.

PART IV

Iltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) (1), (2) Financial Statements.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(a) (3) Exhibits
The exhibits filed with this annual report on Form 10-K are listed in the Exhibit Index that follows the signatures.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

First United Corporation
By:

William B. Grant
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

March 14, 2005
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.
L nd W/‘&f‘/”(

(William B. Grant) %ector, Chief Executive Officer (Elaine L. McDonald) Director—March 14, 2005
March 14, 2005

\94,J~«L ‘bz ’“"é <~ IHopca..
,214/9/ (Donald E. Moran) Director—March 14, 2005

(David J. Beachy) Director—March 14, 2003

Moy b £ %\/%

(Rex W. Burton) Director—March 14, 2005 (Karen F. Myers) Director—March 14, 2005
(’{«HC E. LS @;};‘)&\/

(Fay Cannon) Director—March 14, 2005 uddell) Directér—March 14, 2005
(Paul Cox, Jr.) [Hrector—March 14, 2005 (1. Robg udy) Dxrector——March }4 2005
(Raymo%d F. Hinkle) Director—March 14, 2005 1chard G. Stanton) Dlrector——March 14, 2005
%M R,u«m
(Robert W. Kurtz) Difectorresident and Chief (Ro‘oert G. Stuck) Director—March 14, 2005

Financial Officer—Marc}/14, 2005

N W15 Gl

(% W. McCullough) Director—March l(Z{, 2005
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1998).

Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) of the Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997).

First United Bank & Trust Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) (incorporated by
referénce to Exhibit 10.1 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2003).

Form: of SERP Participation Agreement between the Bank and each of William B. Grant, Robert W.
Kurtz, Jeannette R. Fitzwater, Phillip D. Frantz, Eugene D. Helbig, Jr., Steven M. Lantz, Robin M.
Murray, Frederick A. Thayer, IV (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Corporation’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and William B. Grant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2003). '

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Robert W. Kurtz (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2003.

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Jeannette R. Fitzwater (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Phillip D. Frantz (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Eugene D. Helbig, Jr. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,7 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Steven M. Lantz (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period June 30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Robin M. Murray (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period June
30, 2003).

Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between the Bank and Frederick A. Thayer, IV (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2003).

First United Corporation Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2003).

Subsidiaries of the Corporation, incorporated by reference to page 3 of this Annual Report on
Form 10:K.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith)

Certifications of the CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (filed herewith)
Certifications of the CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (filed herewith)
Certification of the CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (furnished herewith)

Certification of the CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (furnished herewith)

Risk Factors (filed herewith)




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 33-26248) of First
United Corporation and in the related Prospectuses of our reports dated March 7, 2005, with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of First United Corporation, First United Corporation management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of First
United Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2004.

M ¥ MLL?

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 11, 2005




CERTIFICATIONS Exhibit 31.1

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

[, William B. Grant, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First United Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated. subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared; and

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles; and

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the regjistrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2005 = E e W

William B. Grant, Chairmdn of the Board/
Chief Executive Officer




5.

CERTIFICATIONS Exhibit 31.2

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

I, Robert W. Kurtz, certify that:
I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of First United Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statement made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared; and

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles; and

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Y s
Date: March 14, 2005 p
Robert W. Kurtz, President/Chéfyancial Officer




CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT Exhibit 32.1
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Pursuant to, and for purposes only of, 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned hereby certifies that (i) the Annual
Report of First United Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of First United Corporation.

Date: March .14, 2005 = é@f

William B. Grant, Chairman of the Board/
Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT Exhibit 32.2
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Pursuant to, and for purposes only of, 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned hereby certifies that (i) the Annual
Report of First United Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Report™) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of First United Corporation.
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Robert W. Kurtz, PresidenﬂCWncial Officer




RISK FACTORS Exhibit 99.1

The following factors should be considered carefully in evaluating an investment in shares of common stock of
First United Corporation. When we refer to “we”, “us”, or “our” in these Risk Factors, we mean First United
Corporation and, as the context requires, its subsidiaries.

Our Future Depends on the Successful Growth of Our Subsidiaries

Our primary business activity for the foreseeable future will be to act as the holding company of First United Bank
& Trust and our other direct and indirect subsidiaries. Therefore, our future profitability will depend on the success and
growth of these subsidiaries. In the future, part of our growth may come from buying other banks and buying or
establishing other companies. Such entities may not be profitable after they are purchased or established, and they may
lose money, particularly at first. A new bank or company may bring with it unexpected liabilities, bad loans, or bad
employee relations, or'the new bank or company may lose customers.

The Majority of Our Business is Concentrated in Maryland and West Virginia; A Significant Amount
of Our Business is Concentrated in Real Estate Lending

Because most of our loans are made to Western Maryland and Northeastern West Virginia borrowers, a decline in
local economic conditions may have a greater effect on our earnings and capital than on the earnings and capital of
larger financial institutions whose loan portfolios are geographically diverse. Further, we make many real estate secured
loans, which are in greater demand when interest rates are low and economic conditions are good. Even when economic
conditions are favorable and interest rates are low, these conditions may not continue. Additionally, the market values
of the real estate securing these loans may deteriorate, and we may lose money if a borrower fails to repay a real estate
loan.

First United Bank & Trust May Experience Loan Losses in Excess of its Allowance

The risk of credit losses on loans varies with, among other things, general economic conditions, the type of loan
being made, the creditworthiness of the borrower over the term of the loan and, in the case of a collateralized loan, the
value and marketability of the collateral for the loan. Management of First United Bank & Trust maintains an allowance
for credit losses based upon, among other things, historical experience, an evaluation of economic conditions and
regular reviews of delinquencies and loan portfolio quality. Based upon such factors, management makes various
assumptions and judgments about the ultimate collectability of the loan portfolio and provides an allowance for loan
losses based upon a percentage of the outstanding balances and for specific loans when their ultimate collectability is
considered questionable. If management’s assumptions and judgments prove to be incorrect and the allowance for loan
losses is inadequate to absorb future losses, or if the bank regulatory authorities require us to increase the allowance for
loan losses as a part of its examination process, our earnings and capital could be significantly and adversely affected.
Although management uses the best information available to make determinations with respect to the allowance for
loan losses, future adjustments may be necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used
or adverse developments.arise with respect to our non-performing or performing loans. Material additions to the allowance
for loan losses would result in a decrease in our net income and capital, and could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition.

Interest Rates and Other Economic Conditions Will impact Results of Operations

Our results of operations may be materially and adversely affected by changes in prevailing economic conditions,
including declines in real estate values, rapid changes in interest rates and the monetary and fiscal policies of the federal
government. Our profitability is in part a function of the spread between the interest rates eamed on assets and the
interest rates paid on deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities (i.e., net interest income), including advances from
the Federal Home Loan:Bank of Atlanta. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches (i.e., the interest sensitivity gap)
between the dollar amount of repricing or maturing assets and liabilities and is measured in terms of the ratio of the
interest rate sensitivity gap to total assets. More assets repricing or maturing than liabilities over a given time period is
considered asset-sensitive and is reflected as a positive gap, and more liabilities repricing or maturing than assets over
a given time period is considered liability-sensitive and is reflected as negative gap. An asset-sensitive position (i.e., a
positive gap) could enhance earnings in a rising interest rate environment and could negatively impact earnings in a
falling interest rate environment, while a liability-sensitive position (i.e., a negative gap) could enhance earnings in a
falling interest rate environment and negatively impact earnings in a rising interest rate environment. Fluctuations in
interest rates are not predictable or controllable. We have attempted to structure our asset and liability management
strategies to mitigate the impact on net interest income of changes in market interest rates, but there can be no assurance
that these attempts will be successful in the event of such changes.

The Market Value of Qur Investments Could Decline
As of December 31, 2004, we had classified 100% of our investment securities as available-for-sale pursuant to
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 115 relating to accounting for investments. SFAS No. 115
requires that unrealized gains and losses in the estimated value of the available-for-sale portfolio be “marked to market”
and reflected as a separate item in shareholders’ equity (net of tax) as accumulated other comprehensive income. There
can be no assurance that future market performance of our investment portfolio will enable us to realize income from
sales of securities. Shareholders’ equity will continue to reflect the unrealized gains and losses (net of tax) of these
investments. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the market value of our investment portfolio will not decline,
causing a corresponding decline in shareholders’ equity.

Management believes that several factors will affect the market values of our investment portfolio. These include,
but are not limited to, changes in interest rates or expectations of changes, the degree of volatility in the securities
markets, inflation rates or expectations of inflation and the slope of the interest rate yield curve (the yield curve refers
to the differences between shorter-term and longer-term interest rates; a positively sloped yield curve means shorter-
term rates are lower than longer-term rates). Also, the passage of time will affect the market values of our investment
securities, in that the closer they are to maturing, the closer the market price should be to par value. These and other
factors may impact specific categories of the portfolio differently, and management cannot predict the effect these
factors may have on any specific category.

Our Ability to Pay Dividends is Limited

Our current ability to pay dividends to shareholders is largely dependent upon the receipt of dividends from First
United Bank & Trust. Both federal and state laws impose restrictions on the ability of First United Bank & Trust to pay
dividends. Federal law prohibits the payment of a dividend by an uninsured depository institution if the depository
institution is considered “undercapitalized” or if the payment of the dividend would make the institution
“undercapitalized”. This policy statement is applicable only to troubled institutions. For a Maryland state-chartered
bank or trust company, dividends may be paid out of undivided profits or, with the prior approval of the Commissioner,
from surplus in excess of 100% of required capital stock. If however, the surplus of a Maryland bank is less than 100%
of its required capital stock, cash dividends may not be paid in excess of 90% of net earnings. In addition to these
specific restrictions, bank regulatory agencies also have the ability to prohibit proposed dividends by a financial institution
which would otherwise be permitted under applicable regulations if the regulatory body determines that such distribution
would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Because of these limitations, there can be no guarantee that we will
declare dividends in any fiscal quarter.

Our Stock is not Heavily Traded

The shares of our common stock are listed on the Nasdaq National Market and are not heavily traded. Securities
that are not heavily traded can be more volatile than stock trading in an active public market. Factors such as our
financial results, the introduction of new products and services by us or our competitors, and various factors affecting
the banking industry generally may have a significant impact on the market price of our common stock. Management
cannot predict the extent to which an active public market for our securities will develop or be sustained in the future.
In recent years, the stock market has experienced a high level of price and volume volatility, and market prices for the
securities of many companies have experienced wide price fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to their
operating performance. Therefore, our shareholders may not be able to sell their shares at the volumes, prices, or times
that they desire.

Our Stock is not Insured
Investments in our securities are not deposits and are not insured against loss by the government.

We Operate in a Competitive Market

We operate in a competitive environment, competing for loans, deposits, and customers with commercial banks,
savings associations and other financial entities. Competition for deposits comes primarily from other commercial
banks, savings associations, credit unions, money market and mutual funds and other investment alternatives. Competition
for loans comes primarily from other commercial banks, savings associations, mortgage banking firms, credit unions
and other financial intermediaries. Competition for other products, such as insurance and securities products, comes
from other banks, securities and brokerage companies, insurance companies, insurance agents and brokers, and other
nonbank financial service providers in our market area. Many of these competitors are much larger in terms of total
assets and capitalization, have greater access to capital markets, and/or offer a broader range of financial services than
those that we offer. In addition, banks with a larger capitalization and financial intermediaries not subject to bank
regulatory restrictions have larger lending limits and are thereby able to serve the needs of larger customers. Finally, our
growth and profitability will depend upon our ability to attract and retain skilled managerial, marketing and technical
personnel. Competition for qualified personnel in the financial services industry is intense, and there can be no assurance
that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel.
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The Banking Industry is Heavily Regulated; Significant Regulatory Changes Could Adversely
Affect Our Operations

Our operations will be impacted by current and future legislation and by the policies established from time to time
by various federal and state regulatory authorities. First United Corporation is subject to supervision by the Federal
Reserve Board. First United Bank & Trust is subject to supervision and periodic examination by the Maryland
Commissioner of Financial Regulation and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Banking regulations, designed
primarily for the safety of depositors, may limit a financial institution’s growth and the return to its investors by
restricting such activities as the payment of dividends, mergers with or acquisitions by other institutions, investments,
loans and interest rates, interest rates paid on deposits, expansion of branch offices, and the offering of securities or trust
services. First United Corporation and First United Bank & Trust are also subject to capitalization guidelines established
by federal law and could be subject to enforcement actions to the extent that either is found by regulatory examiners to
be undercapitalized. It is not possible to predict what changes, if any, will be made to existing federal and state legislation
and regulations or the effect that such changes may have on our future business and earnings prospects. Management
also cannot predict the nature or the extent of the effect on our business and earnings of future fiscal or monetary
policies, economic controls, or new federal or state legislation. Further, the cost of compliance with regulatory
requirements may adversely affect our ability to operate profitably.

We May be Adversely Affected by Recent Legislation

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act was signed into law on November 12, 1999. Among other things, this law repealed
restrictions on banks affiliating with securities firms. It also permits bank holding companies that become financial
holding companies to engage in additional financial activities, including insurance and securities underwriting and
agency activities, merchant banking, and insurance company portfolio investment activities that are currently not permitted
for bank holding companies. Although First United Corporation is a financial holding company, this law may increase
the competition we face from larger banks and other companies. It is not possible to predict the full effect that this law
will have on us.

In addition, current banking laws facilitate interstate branching and merger activity among banks, and interstate
banking is now an accepted element of competition. As a result, we may face an even greater degree of competition in
the banking industry, and we may be brought into competition with institutions with which we do not presently compete.
From time to time other changes are proposed to laws affecting the banking industry, and these changes could have a
material effect on our business and prospects. Our future profitability may be adversely affected by increased competition
resulting from this legislation.

We May be Subject to Claims

Our customers may sue us for losses due to alleged breaches of fiduciary duties, errors and omissions of employees,
officers and agents, incomplete documentation, our failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations, or many
other reasons. Also, our employees may knowingly or unknowingly violate laws and regulations. Management may not
be aware of any violations until after their occurrence. This lack of knowledge may not insulate us from liability. Claims
and legal actions may result in legal expenses and liabilities that may reduce our profitability and hurt our financial
condition. :

We May not be Able to Keep Pace with Developments in Technology

We use various technologies in conducting our businesses, including telecommunication, data processing, computers,
automation, internet-based banking, and debit cards. Technology changes rapidly. Our ability to compete successfully
with other financial institutions may depend on whether we can exploit technological changes. We may not be able to
exploit technological changes, and any investment we do make may not make us more profitable.

Our Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws May Discourage a Corporate Takeover

The Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of First United Corporation and its By-Laws contain certain
provisions designed to enhance the ability of the Board of Directors to deal with attempts to acquire control of the
corporation. These provisions provide for the classification of the Board of Directors into three classes; directors of
each class generally serve for staggered three-year periods. No director may be removed except for cause, and then only
by the affirmative vote of either a majority of the entire Board of Directors or a majority of the outstanding voting stock.
In addition, Maryland law contains anti-takeover provisions that apply to First United Corporation. Although these
provisions do not preclude a takeover, they may have the effect of discouraging a future takeover attempt that would not
be approved by the Board of Directors, but pursuant to which shareholders might receive a substantial premium for
their shares over then-current market prices. As a result, shareholders who might desire to participate in such a transaction
might not have the opportunity to do so. Such provisions will also render the removal of the Board of Directors and of
management more difficult and, therefore, may serve to perpetuate current management. As a result of the foregoing,
such provisions could potentially adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
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